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About tHIs
report

01

this is the 36th Annual Report of employees’ 
trust fund board which provides a 
comprehensive account of how the 

organization has created value primarily to its 
beneficiaries and to other stakeholders in 2016. 
the report aims to share the entity’s inimitable value 
creation story over the short, medium and long term 
with our renowned stakeholders. It also presents 
concise communication of the strategy, governance 
& fund management and demonstrates the 
relationship between its financial performance and 
the social footprint created by the organization. 

the financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with the sri lanka Accounting 
standards .the governance report discusses on 
how the entity complies with the Code of best 
practice on Corporate Governance for public 
enterprises and etf act (46 of 1980). the report 

thereby is solely based on the financial and operating 
information of employees trust fund since it does 
not hold any subsidiaries or associates. 
the report comprises of both quantitative and 
qualitative data and it is our intention to provide 
quantitative data where possible to facilitate 
comparisons and further analysis. the financial 
statements together with the related notes are 
audited by the government auditor and the 
assurance report is also available in this report. 

the contents of the annual report 2016 covers the 
operations spanning the head office and the branch 
network for the period 1st January 2016 to 31st 
december 2016, with the most recent report being 
for the year ended 31st december 2015 for which 
comparatives are given throughout this report. the 
contents of this report have been developed with an 
emphasis on the aspects that are material for the 
organization as well as for its key stakeholders.

the etf board was established under Act no-
46 of 1980 and commenced operations on 
1st march 1981. It was established under the 

ministry of labor and brought under the ministry of 
finance in 1997 and currently under the ministry of 
national policies and economic Affairs since october 
2015. All public sector employees who are not 
entitled to the Govt. pension scheme and all private 
sector employees are members of this fund while 
their employers are required to remit 3% of the gross 
earnings of their employees to the fund, monthly. 
Hence, unlike the epf, only the employer makes a 
contribution on behalf of the employee/member and 
hence, it is a non-contributory benefit to the member. 
special consideration is given to increase the 
voluntary membership of self-employed persons and 
migrant workers who provide a sizable contribution to 
the economy. 

the objectives of the board

(a) to promote employee ownership, employee 
welfare, economic democracy through 
participation in financing and investment;

(b) to promote the employee participation in 
management through the acquisition  
of equity interest in enterprises;

(c) to provide for non-contributory benefit to 
employees on retirement; and

(d) to do all such other acts or things as 
may be necessary for, the objectives  
specified in paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) 
above.

WHo
we are

02
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EmployEEs’ trust fund board

vision mission

values

to be the most dynamic & 
viable premier trust for all 
stakeholders through organisational 
excellence

be the most caring & prudent trust 
providing a wide range of financial member 
benefits and excellent
customer services

•	 Creative,	Innovative	and	Committed	Staff
•	 People	friendly	Working	Environment
•	 Supportive	Policies	and	Processes
•	 Excellent	Systems	and	Procedures
•	 Sound	Finance
•	 Delighted	customers



EmployEEs’ TrusT Fund Board
AnnuAl RepoRt 2016

EmployEEs’ TrusT Fund Board
AnnuAl RepoRt 2016 255254

oRGAnIzAtIonAl

review
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the employees’ trust fund board (etfb) 
at present has a conventional organization 
structure geared to play the role of a trustee or 

a custodian and it is the intention of the management 
to drive the organization to be a more vibrant financial 
organization in the future. the Act does not specify 
about the organization structure. However, under 
section 5, it is stated that the board may formulate 
rules for the conduct of its operations. 

the overall responsibility of the management for the 
activities of the fund lies with its board of directors. 
the board comprises of nine members of which 
four are appointed by the relevant minister and one 
member each nominated by the ministers in charge 
of the subjects of finance and trade, one member 
nominated by the employers federation of Ceylon 
and two members by trade unions having more 
than 100,000 members each.

the Chairman of the board is selected at the 
discretion of the minister in charge and he is also the 
Chief executive officer (Ceo) of the trust fund as 
provided by the Act.

the etfb was initially structured as a centralized 
organization, mainly due to the fact that the majority 

of employers were concentrated in the Western 
province. After completion of restructuring program of 
Regional office network with the opening of Regional 
offices and district offices in most potential areas, 
a rapid development took place in the enforcement 
and legal activities. subsequently most of member 
services activities such as claims acceptance, claims 
payments, member awareness programs etc were 
decentralized. 

the functional areas of etfb can be broadly 
divided into operations and support services. 
the operational areas are identified as Collection 
& employer Relations, member services and 
Investments. the Administration and Human 
Resources, finance, It and Internal Audit functions 
have been recognized as support services.

As specified by the Act, the Chairman is empowered 
to perform duties as Chief executive officer (Ceo) 
of the organization. the General manager and 
Additional General manager will function under the 
direct supervision of Ceo. each functional area is 
headed by a deputy General manager (dGm).  the 
position of Working director been established to 
assist Chairman/ Ceo. 
 

Accordingly, a comprehensive organization structure 
has been developed to ensure the smooth 
functioning of the organization. 

FunCtions oF Departments/Divisions/
units oF tHe BoarD

1. Collections and Employer relations division

 It is mandatory to contribute 3% on gross 
earnings of employees who are working in the 
private sector and non pensionable Government 
organizations. timely collection of contribution 
from employers, collection of surcharges, find 
defaulters/ non contributors, taking legal action 
against defaulters etc. are some of core activities 
associated with the contribution collection 
process.  the Collection and employer Relation 
division is responsible for achieving collection 
targets of the board.

2. Investments division

 the Investment division is one of core business 
unit of the organization which set up to manage 
Investment portfolio of the board. the prime 
objective of this unit is to earn optimum return 
while maintaining safety of investments and 
liquidity. A comprehensive investment policy is 
available as a guideline for Investment decisions.

3. member services division

 the main functions of this division include, 
updating and maintaining member Accounts, 
issuing Annual member statements (Ams) 
to members, speedy processing of General 
benefits (normal & death Claims) and maintain 
other welfare benefit schemes for the active 
members. the adequate steps have been taken 
to provide necessary infrastructure to further 
strengthen the activities of this division. 

4. finance division

 the core functions of finance division include 
preparation of monthly & annual accounts, 
annual budget, and effecting staff and other 
payments inclusive of government taxes, 
coordination of government audit maters, 

preparation of corporate plan and other 
management information reports. 

5. administration and Human resource

 It is recognized that, the need for adapting to the 
modern HR techniques and best office practices 
which are vital in the current competitive 
business environment. etf board itself as a 
service organization, the dependability on people 
(employees) is very high. Hence, high priority 
is given to develop and improve the activities 
carried out by Administration and Human 
Resources division. Accordingly various initiatives 
have been taken to update and improve 
existing systems and procedures followed by 
Administration and Human Resources division 
and to provide necessary training for the staff.

6. Information technology division

 the It division is mainly responsible to manage 
and maintain the member Administration 
software system (mAss). further It division 
has been restructured to cater It needs of other 
divisions as well.   

7. audit and assurance division

 the Internal Audit division is responsible to 
ensure that the adequate systems of Internal 
Controls are established and such systems are 
adopted continually and appropriately. the dGm 
(Internal Audit) will directly report to the Ceo. 
the management is of the view that, a study 
to be undertaken to re-assess the adequacy 
of existing systems and procedures of Internal 
Audit and strengthen the role of the Internal Audit 
as an effective   tool in the decision making 
process of the organization. 

8. legal division

 the legal section operates as an advisory 
service unit for all legal matters of the board. 
the legal activities have been de-centralized to 
regional level with the expansion of Ro network.  
A separate legal officer has been assigned to 
engage for legal matters at each Ro. the legal 
section functions under the supervision of dGm 
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Profit
Rs. 20 Bn

ROI
10%

Total
Assets

Rs. 249 Bn

Member
Fund

Rs. 246 Bn

Investment
Income

Rs. 24.6 Bn

Total
Employees

947

17
Branches

Tota Benefits
&

Refunds Paid
Rs. 13.5Bn

(Collection & employer Relations).

9. planning, research and development 
division

 monitoring updating and revising of corporate 
plan for eftb on yearly basis and new plan 
made available for implementation by 1stJanuary 
of each year. progress reporting etfb on 
monthly /quarterly/Annual basis, making needed 
corrections and statutory Reporting to ministry, 
parliament and other Institutions on timely basis, 
effectively and timely conduct research needed 
for effective decision making required for the 
management of eftb are main functions of this 
division.

10. statistics division

 Real time data base made available to everyone 
for effective management decision making, 
preparation of trend analysis on required data 
and analyzing, forecasting and planning for future 
years on timely basis, provide important signals 
required for management decision making 
periodically, dissemination of categorized and 
indexed information to the required institutions for 
national planning and implementation are main 
functions of statistics division.

peRfoRmAnCe
HigHligHts
2016
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Reimbursement of cost of intra- ocular lenses

Financial assistance for kidney transplants

Permanent Disability benefits

“Shramasuva Rekawarna” hospitalization medical 
scheme 
Educational grant for children of ETF members

Financial Awards for year 5 Scholars

Death benefits

“Viyana” housing scheme 

Financial assistance for hart surgeriesheart
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2016 yeAR At
a glanCe

06

the board recorded considerable progress 
and had many significant achievements during 
the year 2016. some achievements are 

highlighted below.

•	 The	total	Contributions	from	employers	for	the	
year amounted to Rs. 20 billion which was an 
increase of 12% compared to the previous year.

•	 The	total	Investment	income	recorded	Rs.24.0	
billion during the year compared to Rs.21.4 
billion in 2015 with a growth of  12% while the 
value of the investment portfolio increased from 
Rs.210 billion to 229.5 billion as at the end of 
the reporting period. 

•	 The	Board	earned	a	net	profit	of	Rs.20.2	Billion	
compared to Rs. 18 billion in the previous year 
and the whole profit was distributed to members 
at the end of the year as interest and dividends.

•	 The	total	net	asset	value	of	the	Fund	exceeded	
Rs.248 billion at the end of the year.

•	 Board	was	able	to	declare	a	total	rate	of	9%	to	
its members as interest and dividend for 2016. 
this is an attractive rate compared to the savings 
rates offered by state banks to its customers.

•	 Operating	expenses	as	a	percentage	of	total	
income decreased to 7.3% in 2016 from 7.9% 
in 2015. this is a reflection of the improved 
operating efficiency of the entity for the period. 

•	 The	Regional	office	network	continued	to	
function effectively during the year with special 
attention focused on recovering of outstanding 
contributions and surcharges and legal dues.

•	 the decentralized claims payment programme is 
continued with Gampaha, Kandy, matara, badulla 
and Kurunegala Regional offices successfully and 
payment of express claims also started in Kandy 
and Kurunegala Regional offices.

•	 In	addition	to	the	monthly	contribution	payments	
made by cheque at Head office by employers, 
payment could also be made through our 
Regional office network and at our Collection 
office at bank of Ceylon, City office.

•	 Continuous	progress	has	been	recorded	at	
Jaffna Regional office which was established 
in year 2010 by maintaining average monthly 
contribution collection close to 10 million and 
1600 employers.

To promote the employee participation 
in management through the acquisition 
of equity interest in enterprises
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1986
death benefit scheme:
rs. 100,000/=

1989 
death benefit scheme: 

permanent disability scheme:
rs. 200,000/=

1991 
death benefit scheme: 
permanent disability scheme:
financial assistance for Heart surgery:
rs. 300,000/=

1992
death benefit scheme:

permanent disability scheme:
Heart surgery scheme:

reimbursement of Inter - ocular lens:
rs. 18,000/=

2016
All 2010 Achievements

reimbursement of Inter - ocular lens:
rs. 30,000/=

1994
death benet scheme
permanent disability scheme
financial Assistance for Heart surgery
Reimbursement of Intra-ocular lens
year 5 scholarship
rs. 15,000/= -9,000 scholarships

1997
death benet scheme

permanent disability scheme
financial Assistance for Heart surgery

Reimbursement of Intra-ocular lens
year 5 scholarship

“shramasuwa rekawarana” Hospitalization scheme
rs.25,000/= per year upto maximum of rs. 50,000

during the entire service period

2002
death benefit scheme
permanent disability scheme
financial Assistance for Heart surgery
Reimbursement of Intra-ocular lens
year 5 scholarship
“shramasuwa Rekawarana” Hospitalization scheme
“Viyana” low Interest Housing loan scheme

2006
death benet scheme

permanent disability scheme
financial Assistance for Heart surgery

Reimbursement of Intra-ocular lens
year 5 scholarship

“shramasuwa Rekawarana” Hospitalization scheme
”Viyana” Housing loan scheme

assistance from Kidney transplant surgery rs. 300,000/=

2010
death benet scheme 
permanent disability scheme
financial Assistance for Heart surgery
Reimbursement of Intra-ocular lens year 5 scholarship
“shramasuwa Rekawarana” Hospitalization scheme
“Viyana” Housing loan scheme
financial Assistant from Kidney transplant surgery
year 5 scholarship rs.15,000/=
(Etf members who had to terminate)
employment due to permanent disability)
financial Grant for GCE (a/l) students - rs.12,000/= 
5,000 scholarships

mIlestones fRom
1986 to 2016

07
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bACKGRound
analysis

08

i. swot analysis 

i. economic trend analysis

the sri lankan economy gathered pace in the third 
quarter of 2016, buttressed by robust performances 
in the industry and services sectors. economic 
growth for the third quarter was 4.1 percent, notably 
above the 2.6 percent observed for the second 
quarter. the economy grew by 3.9 per cent during 
the first half of 2016 in real terms, in comparison to 
5.7 per cent growth recorded in the corresponding 
period of 2015. the Industrial sector which grew 
by 7.7 percent during the first quarter of 2016 
decelerated to 2.2 percent in the second quarter 
causing the dip in the overall Gdp. However there 
was significant growth in the construction sector 
which grew by 8.5 percent for the first half of 2016. 
the Agriculture sector contracted due to adverse 
weather conditions, which also affected prices of 
domestic fresh food items in the first half of the year. 
the services sector expanded due to wholesale and 
retail trade activities which grew by 4.5 percent and 
financial services which recorded exponential growth 
of 15.1 percent for the first half of 2016.

In the external sector, the cumulative deficit in the 
trade balance expanded further to usd 8.2 billion 
during the first eleven months of 2016 from us 
dollars 7.6 billion during the corresponding period in 

I.  sound and smooth processed 
 used for the collection, enforcement 
 and disbursement operations
II.  attraction of membership due to strong 

benefit schemes available
III.  High liquidity position
IV.  monopoly position vested by the act
V.  availability of income generating 

valuable asset ownership
VI.  autonomy available for fund 

management
VII.  Express disbursement facility available
VIII. Exceptional staff reward system for 

relention
IX.  availability of effective enforcement, 

legal modulea and network

I. Govt’s move to provide one 
million jobs in the next five years

II. private sector and semi Govt. 
salary increase

III. Increase in the Entrepreneurship 
culture

IV. Increase of foreign investor 
inflow

V. Increasing trend for Micro finance
VI. Increase of the national minimum 

wage
VII. development strategy of the new 

govt 

I. market Constraints in Investment
II. non availability of high yielding 

investments in the market
III. Present trend in Global conflicts
IV. Increase in trend of stringent 

Environment rules and 
regulation

V. Increasing trend in retirement 
rate

VI. prevailing low interest rates 
causing low dividend rate

I. lack of facilities for effective 
operations

II. Coverage areas for collection 
inadequately demarcated

III. Non availability of own office 
complex & lack of space for present 
operational activities

IV. lack of adequate systems for the 
retrieval of date for effective decision 
making

V. outdated computer program 
presently in use making errors and 
hindering the speed of processing

VI. Inadequated date base
VII. Imbalance in the medium of 

operations (especially tamil and 
English)

strengtHs

opportunities

tHreats

weaknesses

HARmful fACtoRs

Helpful fACtoRs
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2015, as a result of increased import expenditure, 
amidst the contraction in export earnings. earnings 
from tourism and workers’ remittances continued 
to dampen the adverse impact of the trade deficit 
on the overall balance of payments. earnings from 
tourism were estimated to have increased by 14.0 
per cent to around us dollars 3.4 billion during 
2016, while workers’ remittances increased by 3.7 
per cent to us dollars 7.2 billion during the year. 
the realization of foreign direct investment (fdI) 
inflows was below expectations in the first nine 
months of the year, while there were some outflows 
of foreign investments from the rupee denominated 
government securities market. 

In spite of the price pressures arising from supply 
side disruptions and the immediate impact of 
tax adjustments introduced by the government, 
consumer price inflation remained in single digits 
throughout the year. However, the year on year 
inflation picked up in the second quarter as a result 
of the combined impact of domestic supply side 
disturbances, particularly due to adverse weather 
conditions, and the increase in the Value Added 
tax (VAt) and the removal of certain exemptions for 
VAt and nbt from the fiscal front. Inflation reduced 
thereafter due to the normalization in domestic 
supply conditions as well as the suspension of the 
implementation of changes to the government tax 
structure.

Accordingly, the Central bank tightened its monetary 
policy stance, first by raising the statutory Reserve 
Ratio (sRR) and then by raising its main policy 
interest rates in two steps during february and July of 
the year. the tightening of monetary policy was also 
expected to support the reduction of the pressure on 
the external sector through the dampening of 
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percent, notably above the 2.6 percent observed for the second quarter. The economy grew by 3.9 per 
cent during the first half of 2016 in real terms, in comparison to 5.7 per cent growth recorded in the 
corresponding period of 2015. The Industrial sector which grew by 7.7 percent during the first quarter 
of 2016 decelerated to 2.2 percent in the second quarter causing the dip in the overall GDP. However 
there was significant growth in the construction sector which grew by 8.5 percent for the first half of 
2016. The Agriculture sector contracted due to adverse weather conditions, which also affected prices 
of domestic fresh food items in the first half of the year. The services sector expanded due to wholesale 
and retail trade activities which grew by 4.5 percent and financial services which recorded exponential 
growth of 15.1 percent for the first half of 2016. 
 
In the external sector, the cumulative deficit in the trade balance expanded further to USD 8.2 billion 
during the first eleven months of 2016 from US dollars 7.6 billion during the corresponding period in 
2015, as a result of increased import expenditure, amidst the contraction in export earnings. Earnings 
from tourism and workers’ remittances continued to dampen the adverse impact of the trade deficit on 
the overall balance of payments. Earnings from tourism were estimated to have increased by 14.0 per 
cent to around US dollars 3.4 billion during 2016, while workers’ remittances increased by 3.7 per cent 
to US dollars 7.2 billion during the year. The realization of foreign direct investment (FDI) inflows was 
below expectations in the first nine months of the year, while there were some outflows of foreign 
investments from the rupee denominated government securities market.  
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In spite of the price pressures arising from supply side disruptions and the immediate impact of tax 
adjustments introduced by the government, 
consumer price inflation remained in single 
digits throughout the year. However, the 
year on year inflation picked up in the 
second quarter as a result of the combined 
impact of domestic supply side disturbances, 
particularly due to adverse weather 
conditions, and the increase in the Value 
Added Tax (VAT) and the removal of certain 
exemptions for VAT and NBT from the fiscal 

front. Inflation reduced thereafter due to the normalization in domestic supply conditions as well as 
the suspension of the implementation of changes to the government tax structure. 
 
 
Accordingly, the Central Bank tightened its 
monetary policy stance, first by raising the 
Statutory Reserve Ratio (SRR) and then by 
raising its main policy interest rates in two 
steps during February and July of the year. 
The tightening of monetary policy was also 
expected to support the reduction of the 
pressure on the external sector through the 
dampening of import intensive credit flows to 
the economy and discouraging portfolio capital outflows in the context of the normalization of 
monetary policy in the United States of America. 
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However s&p 20 Index showed much better 
performance recording only a decline of 2.8 
percent.  the performance of AspI tends to mirror 
the movement of the msCI emerging market index 
for the latter half of the year. except for the month of 
february net foreign inflows remained negative during 
the first half of year 2016 while a slight pickup is 
seen from the month of July onwards. However the 
total foreign investor contribution to market turnover 
improved to 42.5 percent compared to 34.4 
percent in 2015, while recording a total net foreign 

inflow of Rs. 633.5 million compared to the Rs. 5.4 
billion in foreign outflow in 2015. daily turnover for 
2016 reduced to around Rs. 730 million compared 
to Rs. 1060 million for 2015. 

import intensive credit flows to the economy and 
discouraging portfolio capital outflows in the context 
of the normalization of monetary policy in the united 
states of America.

the equity market witnessed a tremendous 
downturn in the year 2016. the price indices, market 
capitalization and turnover levels declined. Increased 
investor uncertainty over future policy directions and 
political changes, pressure on the exchange rate 
and significantly lower quantities of foreign buying, 
seem to have created a negative impact on the 
equity market despite a low interest rate regime. 
Consequently AspI dropped with a 9.5 percent 
decline for the year. 
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front. Inflation reduced thereafter due to the normalization in domestic supply conditions as well as 
the suspension of the implementation of changes to the government tax structure. 
 
 
Accordingly, the Central Bank tightened its 
monetary policy stance, first by raising the 
Statutory Reserve Ratio (SRR) and then by 
raising its main policy interest rates in two 
steps during February and July of the year. 
The tightening of monetary policy was also 
expected to support the reduction of the 
pressure on the external sector through the 
dampening of import intensive credit flows to 
the economy and discouraging portfolio capital outflows in the context of the normalization of 
monetary policy in the United States of America. 
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The equity market witnessed a tremendous downturn 
in the year 2016. The price indices, market 
capitalization and turnover levels declined. Increased 
investor uncertainty over future policy directions and 
political changes, pressure on the exchange rate and 
significantly lower quantities of foreign buying, seem to 
have created a negative impact on the equity market 
despite a low interest rate regime. Consequently ASPI 

dropped with a 9.5 percent decline for the year.  
 
However S&P 20 Index showed much better performance recording only a decline of 2.8 percent.  The 
performance of ASPI tends to mirror the movement of the MSCI emerging market index for the latter 
half of the year. Except for the month of February net foreign inflows remained negative during the 

first half of year 2016 while a slight 
pickup is seen from the month of July 
onwards. However the total foreign 
investor contribution to market 
turnover improved to 42.5 percent 
compared to 34.4 percent in 2015, 
while recording a total net foreign 
inflow of Rs. 633.5 million compared to 

the Rs. 5.4 billion in foreign outflow in 2015. Daily turnover for 2016 reduced to around Rs. 730 
million compared to Rs. 1060 million for 2015.  
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To provide for non-contributory 
benefit to employees on retirement; 
and to do all such other acts or 
things as may be necessary for, the 
above objectives
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Chairman’s Review 
It is my pleasure to present the Annual Report of 
employees’ trust fund (etf) for the year 2016. the 
fund   continued the strong performance surpassing 
several obstacles in 2016. 

total asset value reached Rs. 249 billion and total 
income was recorded as 24.6 billion with a 13% 
increase from the previous year. bottom line of 
the organization was driven by earning a return on 
Investment of 10 per cent. this is a commendable 
performance by the etf amidst depressed equity 
market conditions, witnessed in 2016, once again 
demonstrating its robust fund management and 
investment practices. etf continued to invest 
its excess funds mainly in government securities 
while diversifying into equities and corporate debt 
instruments, managing the exposures appropriately. 

As one of the leading superannuation fund in the 
country, the fund’s long-term investment strategy 
has enabled us to pay a steady rate of interest 
despite regular fluctuations in financial markets. 
Considering the immense economic potential of our 
country the fund is expected to improve over the 
coming years. 

CHAIRmAn’s
review

"As one of the leading 

superannuation fund in the 

country, the fund’s long-term 

investment strategy has enabled 

us to pay a steady rate of interest 

despite regular fluctuations in 

financial markets. Considering the 

immense economic potential of 

our country the fund is expected 

to improve over the coming years." 

the focus to expand into the migrant and self 
employment sectors is expected to increase the 
active membership of the fund. on the other 
hand the trend of aging population will increase 
the withdrawals from the fund. Hence etf, as a 
dynamic player in the financial sector anticipating 
these developments have made changes to the fund 
management strategies in order to increase the value 
of the fund. 

Hence, I wish to assure our members that etf 
is capable of deriving utmost benefits from the 
prevailing economic climate in order to discharge the 
fiduciary responsibility of managing the fund efficiently 
and effectively on behalf of the beneficiaries. projects 
are underway in order to provide a more efficient 
service to the members through streamlining the 
collection process from employers. by the end of 
the year, many employers out of employers eligible 
for the system have successfully registered with the 
system facilitating faster crediting and more efficient 
management of member accounts thus, enabling 
etf to better serve its members. 

eIsA project is another significant step taken by 
the fund, which is scheduled to progress in the 
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coming years. the project targets to improve 
the efficiency of the inspection process there by 
increasing the coverage of divisional secretariats 
and improving the processing of employer master 
files.  Also plans are underway to increase the 
number of employers utilizing the e banking 
facilities by expanding the number of banks. In 
order to transform to a paperless environment it is 
expected to automate all the functions by the 3rd 
quarter of 2018. Image scanning project will be 
implemented in the upcoming year .this project 
targets to convert the enormous amount of existing 
documents belonging to our members into electronic 
form. these measures on completion will in turn 
significantly increase the productivity of the fund. 
etf has collaborated with other government bodies 
on various grounds. etf joined in partnership with 

epf to detect non contributors. further assistance 
was obtained from relevant authorities related to 
self employment to implement effective marketing 
strategies. 

In this background, I wish to express my appreciation 
to the staff for their relentless dedication and 
commitment. I also wish to express my sincere 
gratitude to all the members and employers of the 
etf, for keeping their utmost confidence in order to 
make our journey a success. 

mr. mahinda madihahewa
Chairman/Chief executive officer
employees’ trust fund board

review of financial statements

the directors are responsible for the preparation 
of the financial statements of etf and, which 
reflect a true and fair view of the financial position 
and performance of the entity. the directors are 
of the view that the Income statement, statement 
of Comprehensive Income, statement of financial 
position, statement of Changes in equity, statement 
of Cash flows, significant Accounting policies and 
notes thereto appearing on pages 46 to 70 have 
been prepared in conformity with the requirements 
of the sri lanka Accounting standards slfRss and 
lKAss as mandated by the sri lanka Accounting 
and Auditing standards Act no. 15 of 1995. 

based on the above the board of directors confirms 
that the financial reporting system of employees trust 
fund has been designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes has been done in accordance 
with the sri lanka Accounting standards and 
statutory guidelines.

boARd of
DireCtor’s review

the directors have pleasure in presenting 

the 36th Annual Report of employees’ trust 

fund together with the Audited financial 

statements for the year ended 31st 

december 2016 and the Auditors’ Report 

on those financial statements. this is to 

comply with reporting requirements and 

guidelines issued by department of public 

enterprise guidelines for good governance.

review of principal activities

Employer Contributions and members accounts
A total of 12,892 new employers commenced their 
contributions to the fund during the year 2016 and 
out of them 5832 remained active as at the year 
end. similarly the total contributions received from the 
employers in respect of their employees during 2016 
were Rs. 20.0 billion compared to Rs. 17.9 billion 
in 2015. further, the value of the member’s fund 
increased from Rs. 218.5 billion to Rs.246 billion at 
the end of the year under review. 

Member Benefits and Welfare Benefits
during 2016, 171,801 refund claims were 
processed and the total amount paid was Rs. 13.5 
billion. Comparatively during 2015, 162,983 Claims 
were processed and amounted to Rs.11.5 billion. 
during the year the average amount paid per claim 
increased to Rs. 78,579 from Rs 70,519 in the 
previous year. during 2016, 3,654 benefit claims 
were processed and Rs.299.3 million was paid. 
Comparatively 3,481 claims were processed in 
2015 and Rs.180 million was paid. While Rs.176.74 
million was paid in year 2016 on behalf of the 
children of members who had passed the year five 
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scholarship examination, Rs.42.52 million was paid 
to Children of etf members who had passed the 
GCe (A/l) examination in year 2016, as a means of 
assistance for their higher education. 

maintenance of member accounts
the total number of active and inactive accounts of 
the fund as at the end of the year was approximately 
12.5 million. the fund maintains member accounts 
for all the active and inactive members. 96% of 
member accounts were updated up to year 2016 
at the year end. out of these accounts 10 million 
were inactive while 2.5 million member accounts 
were active and on whose behalf Annual member 
statements were issued to the respective employers 
during the year.

Investments
the Investments portfolio grew from Rs.210 billion 
to Rs.229.5 billion in 2016 which is an increase 
of 9.3% over the previous year. during the year 
2016 the board strictly followed the guidelines of 
the investments policy and obtained a reasonable 
return whilst protecting the capital. A major portion 
of the portfolio amounting to Rs.194 billion (84.5%) 
was invested in Government securities and Rs.2.3 
billion (1%) invested in Government Guaranteed 
fixed Income Instruments whilst Rs.12.3 billion 
(5.4%) invested in equities and Rs.5 billion (2.2%) in 
other investments. the board has earned a profit of 
Rs.27.1 million on share trading and earned a gain 
of 32.8 million on long term holding. As stated earlier, 
during the year 2016, in addition to the above etf 
also earned an investment income of Rs.24 billion 
against Rs.21.4 billion in 2015 which is an increase 
of Rs.2.5 billion.

Collection & Employer relations
When compared to previous year, the numbers of 
employers were increased up to 77,842 due to the 
inspection carried out covering all districts through 17 
Regional offices. the operation work and monitoring 
were carried out successfully through It network 
of the board. Accordingly it was able to increase 
contribution Collection by Rs.2, 151 million in year 
2016 over 2015.

the contribution payments and remitting of member’s 
details through online banking was successfully 
implemented with Commercial bank, bank of 
Ceylon, peoples bank, sampath bank and Hatton 
national bank and such collection were 45% of 
total contribution. further the entity was also able 
to increase the compliance rate in year 2016 when 
compared to year 2015 due to the awareness 
programs conducted through Regional office on 
regular basis. 

further, in year 2016 in-house and one day training 
programs and workshops on labor laws and 
regulations which are relevant to entire labor force 
were conducted for regional managers and field 
officers and from such programs regional office 
staffs were able to improve their theoretical and 
practical knowledge. the board of directors hereby 
acknowledges the contents of this annual report.  

mahinda madihahewa
Chairman/ Chief executive officer

since employees’ trust fund board is a semi government organization, strong governance practices 
are fundamental to the creation of high value to members, which comply with all statutory and regulatory 
requirements. Commitment to the highest standards of transparency, reliability and compliance are well-
established guiding principles within the board. this Report provides an insight into how the board of directors of 
etfb is committed and takes responsibility to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance.
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•	 ETF	Act
•	 Financial	Regulations	(Government)
•	 Public	Enterprises	Guidelines	(Department	

of public enterprises)
•	 The	Code	of	Best	Practices	(Department	of	

public enterprises)
•	 Sri	Lankan	Accounting	and	Auditing	

standard monitoring board Act 
•	 National	procurement	Guidelines
•	 Relevant	Government	Circulars	(Treasury,	

ministry of public Administration)

•		 Procedure	Manual	and	Policies	of	the	
board

•	 Audit	Committee
•	 Management	Committee
•	 Investment	Committee

statutory and Regulatory framework Rules and procedures

other Commitees

Controls and monitoring

•	 Internal	Audit	Division
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Corporate governanCe Commentary

governance principles Comments on 2016
1. Director Board

1.1. the board the board of directors has a statutory responsibility in the stewardship of the 
fund on behalf of the Government and its stakeholders

1.1.1. Appointments to the 
board

the board shall consist of the following nine members appointed 

•	 Four	members	nominated	by	the	Minister
•	 One	member	nominated	by	the	Minister	in	charge	of	the	

subject of finance
•	 One	member	nominated	by	the	Minister	in	charge	of	the	

subject of trade
•	 One	member	nominated	by	the	Employers	Federation	of	

Ceylon
•	 Two	members	nominated	by	the	Minister	in	consultation	

with the executive of every trade union having more than 
100,000

1.1.2. board meetings the board usually meets on monthly intervals and whenever it is necessary. 
the board met thirteen (13) times during the year. board papers are circulated 
well in advance and not less than three working days before board meetings 
for the upgrade the effectiveness of the board meeting. the attendance at 
board meetings held in 2016 is shown below.

1.1.3. board 
Responsibilities

the board should exercise its mandated rights and responsibilities with integrity 
and in good faith as the custodian of public resources. the board should at 
all times be conscious of its onerous responsibilities, as the outcome of any 
decisions and actions carried out without proper planning will ultimately be 
borne by the public at large.

matters and issues that should be addressed at board meetings :-
•	 Policy	Formulation
•	 Monitoring	and	evaluation	of	performance	of	the	fund	
•	 Monitoring	and	evaluation	of	performance	of	subsidiaries/associates	

and other investments
•	 Annual	Performance	Review
•	 Working	Capital
•	 Quarterly,	Half	Yearly	and	Annual	Performance	Reports
•	 Board	Papers

governance principles Comments on 2016
1.1.4. board secretary All members of the board have access to the advice and services of the 

professionally qualified corporate secretary who is responsible to the board for 
advising the board on compliance with board procedures, the law and relevant 
rules and regulations, and for ensuring that reliable and relevant information 
is provided to the board in a timely manner. the secretary ensures that 
procedures governing board meetings are followed and effective functioning of 
the board while circulating board papers timely.

1.1.5. Role of the board 
secretary

the board secretary has to ensure that board procedures are followed and 
should provide guidance on legal requirements regarding board proceedings. 
In addition the secretary’s duties involve: -

•	 Circulating	notice	of	Board	meetings,	Minutes	of	meetings,	Board	
papers together with other relevant documents

•	 	Follow	up	actions	on	Board	decisions
•	 Assist	Board	members	by	providing	both	internal	and	external	

information

1.1.6. board balance directors come from different fields (finance, trade, employers federation, 
trade union, etc.)   provide a balance platform to the board. they give their 
independent view relating to the each matter.

1.1.7. Adequate time for 
effective board 
meeting

the board usually meets on monthly intervals. the average time spent for a 
board meeting is around 3 hours.

1.2. Chairman/Chief 
Executive Officer

1.2.1. Appointments of the 
Chairman

the Chairman of the board, who shall be the chief executive of the board, shall 
be appointed by the minister.

1.2.2. Responsibilities of 
the Chairman

the Chairman/Chief executive officer who will be the important link in the entire 
governance structure will lead the team and the entity in the right direction. He 
is responsible for implementation of the policies related to core activities and 
preparation of plans and programs, so as to achieve predetermined targets.

2. accountability and audit
2.1. financial 

reporting
board financial statements are prepared and presented in conformity with 
sri lanka Accounting standards and also comply with the Accounting and 
Auditing standard monitoring board Act.

2.1.1. statutory and 
Regulatory Reporting

In terms of the Constitution and the sec. 13 (1) of the finance Act, no. 38 of 
1971, the Auditor General should be the auditor for every public corporation. 
the Auditor General may employ the services of any qualified auditor who shall 
act under his direction and control.

2.1.2. Auditor’s 
responsibility for the 
financial statements

Refer the Auditor General’s Report

2.1.3. directors’ report in 
the Annual Report

Refer the board of director’s Review

2.1.4. statement 
of directors’ 
responsibility for the 
financial statements

Refer the board of director’s Review

2.1.5. management 
discussion and 
Analysis

Refer the management discussion and Analysis
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Governance Principles Comments on 2016 
1. Director Board  

1.1. The Board The Board of Directors has a statutory responsibility in the 
stewardship of the fund on behalf of the Government and its 
stakeholders 

1.1.1. Appointments to 
the Board 

The Board shall consist of the following nine members appointed by the 
Minister 

 Four members nominated by the Minister 
 One member nominated by the Minister in charge of the subject 

of Finance 
 One member nominated by the Minister in charge of the subject 

of Trade 
 One member nominated by the Employers Federation of Ceylon 
 Two members nominated by the Minister in consultation with 

the executive of every trade union having more than 100,000 
1.1.2. Board Meetings The Board usually meets on monthly intervals and whenever it is 

necessary. The board met thirteen (13) times during the year. Board 
Papers are circulated well in advance and not less than three working 
days before Board meetings for the upgrade the effectiveness of the 
board meeting. The attendance at Board meetings held in 2016 is 
shown below. 
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  
II. Management Committee 

 
The responsibility for the Management of the operations of the fund lies with the Chairman and the 
Senior Management. They are responsible for the effective implementation of decisions taken by the 
Board of Director’s. The Chairman and the Senior Management team provide information and 
necessary clarifications to the Board to enable well considered decision. They formulate operational 
plans and budgets and maintain systems, procedures and controls towards effective management of 
the fund while achieving the Board Objectives and Goals. 

The Management Committee therefore is an important management tool in board for periodic 
progress monitoring. Salient matters this Committee should focus on will include: - 

 Board decisions at previous meetings that have still not been implemented 
 Reviewing actual performance against targets and identifying reasons for deviations with 

remedial action that needs to be taken 
 Critical evaluation of cash flows and projected requirements for the quarter ahead 
 Debt/cash management 
 Follow up on procurement delays (if any) to obviate emergency purchases 
 Ensuring payment of statutory dues such as EPF, ETF and taxes 
 Technology upgrading necessary, with justifications to facilitate decision making by the Board 
 Feedback on customer satisfaction/dissatisfaction including complaints in the media to 

recommend remedial measures for improvement /rectification 
 Any new proposals to be incorporated in the revised Corporate Plan 
 All matters relating to administration and establishment 
 Any other day-to-day operational issues. 

 

 

 

governance principles Comments on 2016
2.2. Internal Control

2.2.1. Internal Audit function etfb has its own Internal Audit division

2.2.2. Review the 
effectiveness of 
Internal controls by 
the Audit Committee

Internal Audit division regularly report to the Audit Committee about the 
effectiveness of the Internal Control system including the internal controls over 
financial reporting.

to ensure that decisions for effective operations are 
taken after careful deliberations, it is the responsibility 
of the management to set up Committees, with a 
team of appropriate persons to deal with matters, 
which have a material impact on the board. some of 
the important Committees that board has are: -

I. audit Committee

this Committee should comprise at least three non 
executive board members, chaired preferably by 
a treasury Representative or person possessing 
financial management skills. this Committee should 
meet on a regular basis at least once in three 
months with the Chief Internal Auditor as Co0nvenor 
and should submit its observations to the board of 
directors with recommendations for necessary action.

the scope of this Committee would include, 
amongst others, the following: -

•	 Determination	of	the	responsibilities	of	the	
Internal Audit unit and review of the annual 
audit plans

•	 Review	and	evaluate	internal	control	
systems for all activities of the entity

•	 Review	performance	at	regular	intervals	for	
cost effectiveness and to eliminate wasteful 
expenditure etc.

•	 Liaise	with	external	auditors	and	follow	up	
on Auditor General’s management letters

•	 Ascertain	whether	statutes,	regulations,	
rules and circulars are complied with

•	 Review	financial	statements	to	ensure	
compliance with Accounting standards

•	 Review	internal	audit/external	audit	reports,	
management letters for remedial action

•	 Review	implementation	of	
recommendations/directives of the 
Committee on public enterprises

•	 Prepare	report	on	the	findings	of	the	
Committee for inclusion in the Annual 

Report

Composition of audit Committee
 

•	 mrs. Champa balasooriya 
 Chairman of Audit committee/director
 Appointed by minister of finance

•	 mrs. shietha senaratne
 Addl. secretary/director
 minister of Industry and Commerce 

•	 mr. p ranawakaarachchi  
 director    
 trade union Representative
 Addl. General manager
 All deputy General managers & All Asst. General 

managers

II. management Committee

the responsibility for the management of the 
operations of the fund lies with the Chairman and 
the senior management. they are responsible for 
the effective implementation of decisions taken 
by the board of director’s. the Chairman and the 
senior management team provide information and 
necessary clarifications to the board to enable well 
considered decision. they formulate operational plans 
and budgets and maintain systems, procedures and 
controls towards effective management of the fund 
while achieving the board objectives and Goals.

the management Committee therefore is an 
important management tool in board for periodic 
progress monitoring. salient matters this Committee 
should focus on will include: -

•	 Board	decisions	at	previous	meetings	that	
have still not been implemented

•	 Reviewing	actual	performance	against	
targets and identifying reasons for 
deviations with remedial action that needs 
to be taken

•	 Critical evaluation of cash flows and 
projected requirements for the quarter ahead

•	 Debt/cash	management
•	 Follow	up	on	procurement	delays	(if	any)	to	

obviate emergency purchases
•	 Ensuring	payment	of	statutory	dues	such	

as epf, etf and taxes
•	 Technology	upgrading	necessary,	with	

justifications to facilitate decision making by 
the board

•	 Feedback	on	customer	satisfaction/
dissatisfaction including complaints in the 
media to recommend remedial measures 
for improvement /rectification

•	 Any	new	proposals	to	be	incorporated	in	
the revised Corporate plan

•	 All	matters	relating	to	administration	and	
establishment

•	 Any	other	day-to-day	operational	issues.

III. Investment Committee
the board primary objective in the investment of 
board’s fund is to ensure the safety of principal, while 
managing liquidity to pay the financial obligations 
of the board and providing optimum investment 
return using authorized investments. so Investment 
Committee is trying to ensure those three goals.

• Safety
 the safety of capital is the foremost 

objective of the board. A substantial portion 
of the investment portfolio will be invested 
in the gilt-edged government securities in 
order to ensure safety of the capital.

• Liquidity 
 the investment portfolio shall remain 

sufficiently liquid to enable the board to 
meet all operating requirements that might 
be reasonably projected.

• Return on Investment
 the investment portfolio shall be designed 

to obtain the optimum return using 
authorized investment instruments. 

Investment committee comprises with eight members 
who meet on a daily basis on every working day. 
they decide the appropriate investments from the 
fund based on the market situation.

Board sub Committees Coverage Composition
I. Audit Committee •	 Review	Internal	Controls

•	 Review	Internal	Audit
•	 Review	External	Audit
•	 Review	financial	statements

•	 Three	Directors
•	 All	Deputy	General	Managers	and	All	

Assistant General managers 

II. management Committee •	 Review	operational	issues
•	 Review	necessary	upgrading	
•	 Review	performances

•	 Chairman
•	 Working	Director
•	 Senior	Management

III. Investment Committee •	 Board	investment	policy
•	 Investment	portfolios	and	their	

performance
•	 Review	the	current	

environmental factors

Investment Committee
•	 Treasury	Representatives
•	 From	Line	Ministry		Representative	
•	 Additional	General	Manager
•	 DGM	(Finance)
•	 DGM	(Investments)
•	 DGM	(Internal	Audit)	-	Observer
Equity Committee
•	 Assistant	General	Manager	(Finance)
•	 Two	Managers	from	Finance	Division
•	 Three	Investment	Analysts

suB Committees

suB Committees exeCutive summary
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RIsK mAnAGement
report

risk management

being one of the premier superannuation funds in 
sri lanka, etf manages long term savings of private 
sector and semi - government employees to provide 
maximum retirement benefits while ensuring safety 
of capital. etf is an important entity in the financial 
sector as it holds a significant amount of government 
securities and owns 0.3% of the market capitalization 
of the Colombo stock exchange. therefore, the 
management has been placing a heavy emphasis 
on the management of the risks associated with the 
fund.

the key risks faced by the etf are credit risk, market 
risk, liquidity risk and operational risk.

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of default on a debt that may 
arise from a borrower failing to make required 
payments. the credit risk of the fund was minimal 
as 84.5 per cent of the investments were held in 
government securities (as at 31st dec 2016) which 
are considered as risk free investments. Credit 
risk arising from the corporate debentures, which 
accounted for 1 per cent of the portfolio, is low 

since the fund invests only in rated corporate debt 
instruments. such investments are made only after 
a thorough consideration of issuer ratings and other 
risk factors. In addition, all reverse Repo investments 
which assumed about 0.03 per cent of the fund 
has been collateralized by adequate government 
securities. therefore the credit risk of etf is remains 
at a very low level. 

market risk 

market risk is the risk arising due to fluctuations in 
financial markets. At present, the market risks that 
make a direct impact on the fund is interest rate 
risk and equity risk. When the market interest rates 
increase, the value of the treasury bond portfolio 
deteriorates (price risk) and when the interest rates 
decrease, the fund will have to reinvest at low interest 
rates (reinvestment risk). However, this risk has 
been managed periodically by selecting treasury 
bonds of different maturities and yields appropriately. 
the equity risk refers to the risk faced by the fund 
in holding equity in a particular investment. such 
can arise by the reduction in the value of the equity 
portfolio due to the decline in the share prices. 
this risk has been mitigated by imposing limits on 
the equity portfolio, diversifying equity portfolio into 

different sectors such as, banking, finance and 
insurance, diversified holdings, manufacturing, power 
and beverages. In addition to the fundamentals the 
quality of management of the counters are assessed 
before investing. on the overall the market risk 
on equity portfolio is relatively low since exposure 
of equity represents only 5.4 per cent of the total 
portfolio of the fund.

liquidity risk

liquidity risk is the risk arising from the inability to 
meet short term financial demands. this is affected 
by the lack of marketability of an investment that 
cannot be bought or sold quickly enough to prevent 
or minimize a loss. the net contribution after refunds 
arrives to positive cash flow of 548 million on average 
per month improving the liquidity position of the fund. 
After considering other cash flows such as income 
and maturity proceeds, the annual refund payment 
as a percentage of total cash inflows was on average 
67% by the end of 2016. In addition, availability of a 

high liquid government securities portfolio provides 
an additional buffer against any liquidity constraint. As 
a daily liquidity management tool, etf invests in the 
overnight Repo market to maintain adequate funds 
on a daily basis while earning a reasonable return. 
therefore, liquidity risk of the fund also remains low.

operational risk 

operational risk is the risk inherent in company 
operations. It is the residual risk after determining 
financing and systematic risk, and includes risks 
resulting from breakdowns in internal procedures, 
people and systems. main sources of operational 
risks of the fund include It related risk, risk arising 
from human errors and intervention and natural 
disasters. In order to mitigate these risks, the 
fund has put in place a sound operational risk 
management process. operational activities are 
audited by an independent internal auditor and audit 
findings are discussed on a monthly basis to rectify 
weaknesses and deviations found immediately. 
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Financial
statement

2016

employees’ trust FunD BoarD
statement oF proFit or loss anD otHer CompreHensive inCome
For tHe year enDeD 31st DeCemBer, 2016

 group  Company

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

n
ot

e

 rs. ‘000  restated 
 rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  restated 

 rs. ‘000 

total income
Interest Income 5  23,530,300  20,277,559  23,492,350  20,274,204 

"(-) Interest Expense - 3.0% 
(as per the section 22 of the Etf act)"

(6,759,768) (6,013,817) (6,759,768) (6,013,817)

net trading Income 6 1,114,228  (78,146)  -    -   

dividend Income 7  486,194  360,582  486,194  360,582 

Gain/(Loss) on Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit /(Loss) 8  68,592  833,850  68,592  833,850 

other Income 9  540,511  332,623  531,650  320,139 

 18,980,056  15,712,651  17,819,018  15,774,958 

total operating expenses
personal Expenses 10 1,059,412 1,048,211  985,963  994,389 

administrative Expenses 11  161,514  147,519  140,819  132,608 

financial Expenses 12  7,967  14,336  2,904  1,988 

member Expenses 13  454,466  429,610  454,466  429,610 

depreciation & amortization 14  40,660  43,515  15,290  16,896 

Interest paid to members on Current year  173,630  148,737  173,630  148,737 

Impairment of Equity Investments 19  283  -    283  -   

 1,897,931  1,831,929  1,773,355  1,724,228 

Profit Before Tax   17,082,125  13,880,722  16,045,663  14,050,730 

Income tax Expenses  15 (2,733,111) (2,007,460) (2,394,498) (2,060,646)

Profit for the Year   14,349,014  11,873,262  13,651,165  11,990,084 

Profit Attributable to:

Equity Holders of the Company  14,279,229  11,884,945  13,651,165  11,990,084 

non-Controlling Interests  69,785  (11,682)  -    -   

Profit for the Year  14,349,014  11,873,262  13,651,165  11,990,084 

Retained Profit B/F  3,317,869  18,090  3,317,869  18,090 

Profit Available for Appropriation  14,349,014  15,082,088  13,651,165  15,327,413 

Total Profit Available for Appropriation  17,666,883  15,100,178  16,969,034  15,345,503 

less: proposed apportionment - dividend  6.0%  13,519,536  12,027,634  13,519,536  12,027,634 

less: dividend - lanka salt  180,000  7,875  -    -   

Profit After Appropriation  3,967,347  3,064,669  3,449,498  3,317,869 

The accounting policies and notes as set out in pages 293 to 324 form an integral part of these financial statement. 
Certified as correct,

………………………………………………
m.a.v. kumudini
finance manager

………………………………………………
n. w. wimalaweera

deputy General manager( finance)

………………………………………………
Mahinda  Madihahewa

Chairman / Chief Executive Officer

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements. 
approved and signed for and on behalf of the board.        
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employees’ trust FunD BoarD
statement oF proFit or loss anD otHer CompreHensive inCome
For tHe year enDeD 31st DeCemBer, 2016

 group  Company

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

n
ot

e

 rs. ‘000  restated 
 rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  restated 

 rs. ‘000 
otHer CompreHensive inCome

Items that are or may be Reclassified to Statement of 
Comprehensive Income

transfer to available for sale financial Instrument reserve  (964,030)  60,425  (964,030)  60,425 

available for sale reserve (units)  (3,846)  -    (3,846)  -   

Items that will not be Reclassified to Statement of 
Comprehensive Income

Actuarial Gain /(Loss) on Retirement Benefit Obligation  500  (29,794)  500  (29,794)

Income tax on other Comprehensive Income/(Expenses) for the year  -    -    -    -   

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the Year Net of Tax  (967,376)  30,631  (967,376)  30,631 

Total  Comprehensive Income for the Year Net of Tax  13,381,638  11,903,893  12,683,789  12,020,715 

Total Comprehensive Income Attributable to

Equity Holders of the Company  13,311,853  11,915,576  12,683,789  12,020,715 

non-Controlling Interests  69,785  (11,682)  -    -   

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year Net of Tax  13,381,638  11,903,893  12,683,789  12,020,715 

The accounting policies and notes as set out in pages 293 to 324 form an integral part of these financial statement.    
Certified as correct, 

………………………………………………
m.a.v. kumudini
finance manager

………………………………………………
n. w. wimalaweera

deputy General manager( finance)

………………………………………………
Mahinda  Madihahewa

Chairman / Chief Executive Officer

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements. 
approved and signed for and on behalf of the board.

employees’ trust FunD BoarD
statement oF FinanCial position
as at 31st DeCemBer, 2016

 group  Company

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st de-
cember 
2015 

n
ot

e

 rs. ‘000  restated 
 rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000

 restat-
ed 

 rs. ‘000 

assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent  748,033  863,226  614,332  841,949 

other financial assets Held-for-trading  1,955,837  1,494,287  1,955,837  1,494,287 

Investment in subsidiary 17  -    -    470,961  470,961 

financial Investments - available-for-sale 18  9,209,233  8,837,699  9,209,233  8,837,699 

financial Investments - Held-to-maturity 19  223,110,604  198,376,078  222,454,509 198,305,886 

financial Investments - loans & receivables 20  1,357,817  1,364,362  1,343,876  1,336,538 

other assets 21  9,591,507  8,213,782  9,214,010  8,053,014 

property, plant & Equipment 22  1,101,719  896,635  176,379  173,144 

leasehold property 23  5,576  6,273  -    -   

Intangible assets 24  192  266  192  266 

Investment property 25  3,400,000  3,200,000  3,400,000  3,200,000 

total assets  250,480,519  223,252,608  248,839,330 222,713,744 

total operating expenses  

liabilities

Interest bearing loans and  borrowings 26  227,124  53,667  -    -   

Grants and subsidies 27  38,041  41,258  -    -   

Defined Benefit Obligation 28  401,707  356,924  202,603  193,085 

Current tax liabilities  270,909  33,582  81,082  33,582 

other liabilities 29  507,483  355,606  101,501  158,766 

provisions 30  87,841  213,754  87,841  213,754 

total liabilities  1,533,106  1,054,790  473,027  599,187 

Equity  248,842,206  222,142,396  248,366,304 222,114,558 

non-Controlling Interest  105,207  55,422  -    -   

total equity  248,947,413  222,197,818  248,366,304 222,114,558 

total liabilities and equity  250,480,519  223,252,608  248,839,330 222,713,744 

The accounting policies and notes as set out in pages 293 to 324 form an integral part of these financial statement.
Certified as correct,

………………………………………………
m.a.v. kumudini
finance manager

………………………………………………
n. w. wimalaweera

deputy General manager( finance)

………………………………………………
Mahinda  Madihahewa

Chairman / Chief Executive Officer

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements. 
approved and signed for and on behalf of the board.
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employees’ trust FunD BoarD
statement oF CasH Flows
For tHe year enDeD 31st DeCemBer, 2016

 group  Company

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

n
ot

e

 rs. ‘000  restated 
 rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  restated 

 rs. ‘000 
operating activities

proceeds from sale of financial Instrument designated at fVtpl 1  264,734  2,953,322  264,734  2,953,322 

maturities of financial Instrument Held to maturity 2 226,866,952 243,132,309 226,866,952  243,132,309 

maturities of financial Instrument loan & receivables 3  128,216  6,263,837  128,216  6,263,837 

payment for purchase for financial Instruments designated at fVtpl 4 (2,105,430)  (5,006,253) (2,105,430)  (5,006,253)

payment for purchase of Held to maturity financial Instruments 5  (250,088,421)  (271,650,535) (250,088,421) (271,650,535)

loan Granted  for acquire loan & receivable financial Instrument 6  (215,730)  (148,464)  (215,730)  (148,464)

monies received from Customers  2,137,602  1,011,685  -    -   

monies paid to suppliers (1,160,490)  (783,195)  -    -   

Interest received 7  19,493,760  16,872,388  19,493,760  16,872,388 

dividend received 8  329,938  524,271  329,938  524,271 

other Income received 9  306,894  281,709  306,894  281,709 

operational Expenses paid 10 (1,047,671)  (1,010,390) (1,047,671)  (1,010,390)

member Expenses paid 12  (315,819)  (228,298)  (315,819)  (228,298)

Income tax paid 13  (713)  (11,395)  (713)  (11,395)

Interest paid  (181,210)  (158,976)  (176,512)  (149,122)

Defined Benefit Plan Costs paid  (23,142)  (11,962)

Ground rent paid to divisional secretaries  (25,095)  (4,472)

year 5 scholarship payment/refund  (178,314)  (8,368)  (178,314)  (8,368)

Higher Education scholarship payment/refund  (41,908)  (19,704)  (41,908)  (19,704)

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities (5,855,848)  (8,002,490) (6,780,024)  (8,204,693)

investing activities

purchase of property and Equipment  (271,465)  (28,515)  (24,990)  (8,633)

proceeds from sale of property and Equipment   470  17,164  73  12,462 

acquisition of  Investments  (585,903)  (12,494)  -    -   

Interest received  40,087  7,149  -    -   

net (Grants) / repayments of staff loans  13,882  17,691  -    -   

Net Cash Flows  from Investing Activities  (802,930)  995  (24,917)  3,829 

Financing activities

Contribution received  20,053,869  17,902,928  20,053,869  17,902,928 

refunds (13,473,997) (11,493,449) (13,473,997)  (11,493,449)

financial Expenses paid 11  (2,547)  (1,639)  (2,547)  (1,639)

dividends paid  (200,000)  (8,750)  -    -   

repayment of Interest bearing loans & borrowings  (24,038)  (35,843)  -    -   

principal payment under finance lease liability  (4,425)  (1,676)  -    -   

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities  6,348,862  6,361,570  6,577,325  6,407,840 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents  (309,916)  (1,639,925)  (227,616)  (1,793,024)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at 01st January  855,620  2,495,545  841,949  2,634,973 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at 31st december  545,704  855,620  614,332  841,949 

employees’ trust FunD BoarD 
signiFiCant aCCounting poliCies to tHe FinanCial statements 

1. Corporate inFormation

1.1. Domicile and legal Form
 employees’ trust fund board (etfb) is a state owned enterprise, established under Act no.46 of 

1980 and commenced operations on 1st march 1981. It was established under the ministry of labor 
and was brought under the ministry of finance in 1997 and from october 2015 functioning under 
the ministry of national policies and economic Affairs, until transfer to the ministry of development 
Assignments in 2016.

 lanka salt limited is a public limited Company incorporated & domiciled in sri lanka. the Registered 
office and the principal place of business of the Company are located at mahalewaya, Hambantota.

1.2. principal activities and nature of operations
 during the year, the principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries dealt within these financial 

statements were as follows:

name of the Company nature of business

employees’ trust fund board public sector employees who are not entitled under the 
government pension scheme and all private sector employees 
are members of this fund while their employers are required to 
remit 3% of the gross earning of their employees to the fund 
monthly. the fund also includes the migrant and self-employment 
sectors, which is expected to increase going forward. Apart from 
managing the fund, etf board provides a range of social and 
welfare benefits to members during their employment.

lanka salt limited the principal activity of the Company is production and 
distribution of salt.   

1.3. parent Enterprise and ultimate parent Enterprise
 there is no ultimate parent of the Company- etfb is the parent.

1.4. date of authorization for Issue
 the financial statement of employees’ trust fund board for the year ended 31stdecember, 2016 were 

authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors on 10thAugust, 2016.

2. summary oF signiFiCant aCCounting poliCies

2.1. General policies

2.1.1. presentation of statement of financial position
 the assets and liabilities of the entity presented in the statement of financial position are grouped by 

nature and listed in an order that reflects their relative liquidity. no adjustments have been made for 
inflationary factors affecting the financial statements. An analysis on recovery or settlement within 12 
months and after more than 12 months from the Reporting date is presented here.

2.1.2. statement of Compliance 
 the statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity 

and statement of cash flows together with accounting policies and notes (“financial statements”) of the 
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company as at 31st december, 2016 and for the year then ended and comply with the sri lanka 
Accounting standards (slfRs/lKAs). the preparation and presentation of these financial statements 
are in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act no.07 of 2007.

the financial statements of lsl have been prepared in accordance with the sri lankan Accounting 
standard for small and medium-sized entities issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of sri 
lanka (slfRs for smes).

2.1.3. Significant Accounts Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions
 the board makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future. estimates and judgments are 

continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future.

the preparation of financial statements of lsl in conformity with the slfRs for smes requires the use 
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the 
process of applying the company’s accounting policies. Areas involving a higher degree of judgment or 
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimations are significant to the financial statements are 
disclosed as follows.
Judgments 
deferred tax Assets:
deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that tax-
able profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. significant management judgment 
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the 
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

2.1.4. basis of measurement
 the financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with exception of 

certain assets and liabilities at fair value. 

the financial statements of lsl have been prepared on a historical cost basis. 

2.1.5. functional and presentation Currency
 these financial statements are presented in sri lankan Rupees, which is the company’s functional 

currency. All financial Information is presented in sri lankan Rupees. 

2.1.6. Going Concern 
 the management of etf board has made an assessment of the board’s ability to continue as a going 

concern and is satisfied that the board has resources to continue in business for a foreseeable future. 
furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon 
the board’s ability to continue as a going concern. therefore, the financial statements are continued to 
be prepared on the going concern basis.

the directors of lsl have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease trading.

2.1.7. Comparative Information

the accounting policies have been consistently applied by the company and are consistent with those 
of the previous year.

2.2. Basis of Consolidation

a) Consolidation
 the consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the company and its 

subsidiary as at 31st december, 2016.

 subsidiary is consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the group obtains 
control, and continues to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases. the financial 
statements of the subsidiary are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company.

However, the accounting policies of the two entities are different which are highlighted within the 
group accounting policies. 

b) subsidiaries
 subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has the power directly or indirectly to govern the 

financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of 
the voting rights. the existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or 
convertible are considered when assessing whether the group controls another entity. subsidiaries 
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. they are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

 the total profits and losses for the year of the company and of its subsidiaries included in 
consolidation and all assets and liabilities of the company and of its subsidiaries included in 
consolidation are shown in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the 
statement of financial position respectively.

c) Reporting date
 the financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the common reporting period, which is 

12 months ending 31st december.

2.3. Basis of Measurement Profit and Loss

2.3.1. revenue
 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity 

and the revenue can be reliably measured. the following specific recognition criteria must also be met 
before revenue is recognized. 

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when the goods are delivered and title has passed. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discounts and 
sales-related taxes collected on behalf of the government. the following specific recognition criteria 
must also be met before revenue is recognized.
a) sale of Goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of 
the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on dispatch of the goods.

b) Rendering of services
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion, determined 
by taking into accounts the labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated labour 
hours for each contract. Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliability, revenue is 
recognised only to the extent of expenses incurred that are recoverable.

c) Interest
Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis that takes in to accounts the effective interest rate 
on asset.

d) others
other income is recognized on an accrual basis.
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2.3.2. Interest and similar Income and Expense
 for all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest bearing financial assets classified as 

available for sale and financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss, interest income 
or expense is recorded using the effective Interest Rate (eIR). eIR is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a 
shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. the 
calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment 
options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are 
an integral part of the eIR, but not future credit losses. Interest income includes coupon income and any 
gain or loss on amortization of discount or premium of the instruments.

 once the recorded value of a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been reduced due 
to an impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognized using the original rate of interest used 
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. 

 Interest expense is recognized according to the section 22 of the etfb Act the shall pay interest at such 
rate, not less than three per centum, as may from time to time be fixed by the board with concurrence 
of the minister and the minister in charge of the subject of finance shall be paid for each year, out of 
the income from the investment of the money of the fund, on the amount standing to the credit of the 
individual account of each member of the credit of the individual account of each member of the fund as 
at the 31st of december in that year. 

2.3.3. dividend Income and Expense
 dividend income is recognized when the entity’s right to receive the payment is established. dividend 

expense is recognized according to the section 14 of the etfb Act the board shall declared dividends 
from the profits realized by investing of money of the fund.

2.3.4. other Income
 other Income is recognized when the entity’s right to receive the payment is established except for the 

interest income on fair value measurement of staff loans that is amortized over the employees’ service 
period.

2.4. taxation

2.4.1. Current taxes
 Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using 

tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in 
respect of previous years.

 the board changed its accounting policy to recognize the proportion of With Holding tax (WHt) 
applicable for the income earned on treasury bonds and bills for the year to be added back to the 
amortization gain account in order to give a fair view about the amortization gain and the income tax 
expenditure.

etfb has not claimed the tax credit from notional tax for a past period, hence there is a tax receivable 
which should have been recognised as an asset. However, an accounting error has committed where 
no tax receiavble has been recognised. In order to rectify the error in current financial year the Retained 
earnings at earliest reporting date (1st January 2015) has been adjusted by lKR 128 million. And 
respective tax assets have been reduced by an equivalent amount of tax credit claimable in respective 
years.

the current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the year. the provision for income tax is based 
on the elements of income and expenses as reported in the financial statements and computed in 
accordance with the provision of the Inland Revenue Act.

2.4.2. deferred taxation

deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance sheet 
date between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for the financial reporting 
period. 

deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences that are expected to increase taxable 
profit in the future. deferred tax assets are recognized for all temporary differences that are expected 
to reduce taxable profit in the future, and any unused tax losses or unused tax credits. deferred tax 
assets are measured at the highest amount that, on the basis of current or estimated future taxable 
profit, is more likely than not to be recovered.
the net carrying amount 

the net carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to 
reflect the current assessment of future taxable profits. Any adjustments are recognized in profit or 
loss.

deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the taxable profit (tax loss) of 
the periods in which it expects the deferred tax asset to be realized or the deferred tax liability to be 
settled, on the basis of tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the 
reporting period.

2.5. foreign Currency translation

the financial statements are presented in sri lanka Rupees, which is the Company’s functional 
and presentation currency. transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional 
currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction. monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet 
date. All differences are taken to profit or loss. non monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial 
transactions. non monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

2.6. Adjustment to the Previous Year Profit
 error corrections are adjusted retrospectively since it enhances the comparability of the financial 

statements. Accordingly the opening balance of retained earnings will be restated after the correction of 
such errors. the following prior period errors were discovered and corrected in 2016. 
a) the amount of lKR 21,900,000 which the company has deposited as the bank guarantee to the 

court will be recognized as an expense occurred in the prior year and therefore will be reduced 
from retained earnings rather than recognizing as a provision.

b) the amount of lKR 74,995,085.96 will be adjusted from prior year as an error correction from 
bond valuation.

c) With reference to the paragraph 35 of lKAs 40 – Investment property, “a gain or loss arising from 
a change in the fair value of investment property shall be recognised in profit or loss for the period in 
which it arises.”
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 Hence, the revaluation gain of lKR 200,000,000 in 2016 and previously identified revaluation gains 
of lKR 3,155,730,000 shall be reclassified from equity (Afs reserve) to profit or loss.

d) etfb has not claimed the tax credit from notional tax for a past period, hence there is a tax 
receivable which should have been recognised as an asset. However, an accounting error has 
committed where no tax receiavble has been recognised. 

 In order to rectify the error in current financial year the Retained earnings at earliest reporting date 
(1st January 2015) has been adjusted by lKR 128 million. And respective tax assets have been 
reduced by an equivalent amount of lKR 30,072,932.91 and lKR 30,376,202.80 as tax credit 
claimable in respective years.

2.7. Financial instruments 

2.7.1. Initial measurement of financial Instruments
 the classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on the purpose and characteristics 

as well as the intention of the management when acquiring them. All financial instruments are measured 
initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities 
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

2.7.2. date of recognition
 All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the board 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. this includes ’regular way trades’: 
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally 
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

2.7.3. Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
 financial assets and financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been designated 

by management upon initial recognition. management may only designate an instrument at fair value 
through profit or loss upon initial recognition when the following criteria are met, and designation is 
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

a) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise 
arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different 
basis.

b) the assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are 
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented 
risk management or investment strategy.

 financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the 
statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in “net gain or loss 
on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss”. Interest earned 
or incurred is accrued in “Interest income” or “Interest expense”, respectively, using the effective 
interest rate (eIR), while dividend income is recorded under “dividend Income” in the income 

 statement when the right to receive the payment has been established.

the value of equity investments not held for trading is periodically reviewed to identify significant 
or prolonged decline in value. for this purpose the management considers objective evidence 
of impairment that is not limited to declining market value but qualitative factors such as strategic 
intent and intrinsic value. Accordingly impairment provisions have recongnised in respect of certain 
equity investments (amounting to lKR 282,738) where there is a significant or prolonged decline 
in value and there is no reasonable possibility of a reversal of the situation. such provisions shall 
recongise through profit or loss.

2.7.4. Held for trading 
 financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading are recorded in the statement of financial position 

at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in income statement. Interest and dividend income or 
expense is recorded in the income statement according to the terms of the contract, or when the right 
to the payment has been established. Included in this classification are equities that have been acquired 
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term 

2.7.5. available for sale (afs) 
 Available for sale investments include long term equity investment and debt securities which are 

intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and may be sold in response to needs for liquidity 
or in response to changes in the market conditions. After initial measurement, available for sale financial 
investments are subsequently measured at fair value. 

2.7.6. Held to maturity (Htm) 
 Held to maturity financial investments are non–derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 

payments and fixed maturities, which the company has the intention and ability to hold to maturity. After 
initial measurement, held to maturity financial investments are subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the eIR, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount 
or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the eIR. the amortization is included in 
‘Interest income’ in the income statement. the losses arising from impairment of such investments are 
recognized in notes to the income statement. 

2.7.7. loans and receivables 
 loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that 

are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method

 (eIR), less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium 
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the eIR. the eIR amortization is included 
in interest income in the income statement. the losses arising from impairment are recognized in the 
income statement in other operating expenses. the fair value loss is amortized over the employee’s 
service period as an employee cost.

 
2.7.8. repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements 
I nvestment in Repurchase Agreement has fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity and 

the board have the positive intent and ability hold to maturity thereby determined to be held to 
maturity investment. this should be initially measured at fair value including transaction cost if any and 
subsequently to be measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate.
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basic financial Instruments 
financial assets are classified as financial assets held for trading, held to maturity, loans and 
receivables and financial assets available-for-sale. the Company determines the classification of its 
financial assets at initial recognition.

loan and Receivable   
loans and receivables include cash and short-term deposits, fixed deposit and trade and other 
receivables. All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs, 
except in the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that 
are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently 
measured at amortized. the losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of 
Comprehensive Income.

financial liabilities
financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other financial 
liabilities in accordance with the substance of the contractual agreement and the definition of financial 
liabilities.

All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs, except in the 
case of financial liabilities recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

financial liabilities including Interest bearing loans and borrowings and other financial liabilities (trade and 
other payable) are initially measured at fair value less transaction cost that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the eIR method. Amortized cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and costs that are an integral 
part of the eIR.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same party on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 
the difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is 
recognised in the income statement.

 
 2.8. property, plant and Equipment
 Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes purchase price, 

directly attributable costs and the estimated present value of any future unavoidable costs of dismantling 
and removing items. the corresponding liability is recognized within provisions. 

 expenditure incurred on repairs or maintenance of property, plant & equipment in order to restore 
or maintain future economic benefits expected from originally assessed standard of performance is 
recognized as an expense in Income statement when incurred.

 provision for depreciation is calculated using the reducing balancing method other than real estate’s 
(Investment property). freehold land is not depreciated. depreciation is provided on all other items of 
property, plant and equipment so as to write off their carrying value less residual value, if any, over their 
expected useful economic lives. the estimated useful economic life times of the assets are as follows.

  Computer equipment  20%
  other equipment   20%
  furniture   15%
  motor Vehicles  25%
  fixtures &fittings  33.33%

the estimated useful economic life time of buildings has to be disclosed as 6.67% per annum on 
residual balancing method. 

 
 depreciation of assets commences in the month when it is available for use and is not depreciated in 

the month of disposal.

 An item of ppe is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected. Any 
gain or loss arising on de-recognition is included in the Income statement in the year the asset is de-
recognized.

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at historical cost less accumulated depreciation 
and any accumulated impairment losses. depreciation is charged so as to allocate the cost of assets 
less annual rates are used for the depreciation of property, plant and equipment:

buildings on leasehold land 2.5%
plant and machinery 10%
equipment 10%
furniture and fittings 10%
motor Vehicles 
- Road Vehicle 10%
- tractors & trailer 20%
development work 20%
mature plantations-Coconut 2%

If there is an indication that there has been a significant change in depreciation rate, useful life or 
residual value of an asset, the depreciation of that asset is revised prospectively to reflect the new 
expectations.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.  Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset 
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) 
is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognized.

2.9. investment property
I nvestment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. subsequent to initial 

recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the 
reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are 
included in the Income statement in the period in which they arise.

 the board’s investment property shall revalue in every three years time to open market value, with 
changes in the carrying value recognize in the statement of Comprehensive Income. Rent receivable 
is spread on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. Where an incentive (such as a rent free 
period) is given to a tenant, the carrying value of the investment property excludes any amount reported 
as a separate asset as a result of recognizing rental income on this basis.
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2.10. intangible assets

2.10.1. Externally acquired Intangible assets
 Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. following initial 

recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated 
impairment losses. the useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

 Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their useful economic lives and assessed for 
impairment. Whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. the amortization 
period and the amortization method for an in tangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least 
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of 
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the 
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. the 
amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the income statement in the 
expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

 Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the 
income statement when the asset is derecognized.

2.10.2. Computer software packages
 Amount incurred in acquisition/upgrading Computer software packages are recognized as an intangible 

asset and amortized over 3 years.

2.11. Leasehold Properties
the leasehold property comprising of land use rights which was previously classified under property, 
plant & equipment and stated at valuation has been reclassified as “leasehold property “. lease 
amount paid for the land at Hambantota has been capitalized and amortized over the lease period of 
30 years.

2.11.1. operating lease
 Where substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are not transferred to the 

board (an “operating lease”), the total rentals payable under the lease are charged to the statement of 
Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.12. inventories
 Inventories are valued at lower of the cost and net realizable value, after making due allowances for 

obsolete and slow moving items.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after making due allowances for 
obsolete and slow moving items. net realisable value is the price at which inventories can be sold 
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost 
necessary to make the sale.

the cost incurred in bringing inventories to its present location and conditions are accounted using the 
following cost formulae:-

Raw materials - At purchase cost on first-in first-out cost basis
finished Goods Work-in-progress - At the cost of direct materials, direct labour and an   
  appropriate  proportion of regional production overheads.
Work-in-progress - At 25% of last season’s brine Circulation and    
  beds preparation expenses, apportioned    
  over calculated quantity of salt deposited at the density 
  level of 12 and above.  
Consumables & spares - At purchase cost on first in first out basis

net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost 
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.   

2.13. Retirement Benefit Liability

2.13.1. Employee benefits

the company has both defined benefit and defined contribution plans. A defined contribution plan is a 
pension plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions to a separate entity. A defined benefit 
plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, based on the 
years of service and compensation.

2.13.2. Defined Contribution Plans
 employees are eligible for employees’ provident fund Contributions and employees’ trust fund 

Contributions in line with respective statutes and regulations. the board contributes 15% and 3% of 
gross emoluments of employees to the employees’ provident fund and to the employees ’trust fund 
respectively.

All employees are eligible for employees’ provident fund and employees’ trust fund contributions 
in line with the prevalent statutes and regulations. the company contributes 12% and 3% of gross 
employee emoluments to epf and etf respectively.

2.13.3. Defined Benefit Plans – Gratuity
 provision has been made for retirement gratuities from the first year of service for all employees, in 

conformity with sri lanka Accounting standards lKAs 19 – employee benefits. However, under the 
payment of Gratuity Act no.12 of 1983, the liability to an employee arises only on completion of five 
years of continued service. the liability is not externally funded.

 A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. the 
entity’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated by estimating the amount 
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; 
that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs are 
deducted.
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 the discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity 
dates approximating the terms of the entity’s obligations and that are denominated in the same currency 
in which the benefits are expected to be paid. the calculation is performed annually by a qualified 
actuary using the projected unit credit method.

 When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past service by 
employees is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits 
become vested. to the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expense is recognized immediately 
in profit or loss. the entity recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans in 
other comprehensive income.

the Company has an unfunded, non-contributory defined benefit plan covering all of its regular 
employees where the benefits are based on the years of service and percentage of latest monthly 
salary. the simplifications on estimated future salary increases, future service of current employees and 
in-service mortality of current employees as per section 28.19 have been used in calculating the value 
of the liability. the gratuity liability is not funded nor actuarially valued.

2.14. equity

2.14.1. member fund
 Contribution received and receivable from members net of refunds made to members during the year 

together with interest and dividends accrued to them are consisted in member fund.

2.14.2. dividends
 dividends are recognized when the fund’s right to receive is established.

2.14.3. reserves
 the revaluation reserve relates to revaluation of freehold land and buildings and represents the fair value 

changes of the land and buildings as at the date of revaluation. Accordingly, the reserve is built up by the 
increase in market value over the purchase cost of the navam mawatha land.

 the board transfers the surplus profit, after payment of dividends and interest from the retained earnings 
account to the dividend equalization Reserve account. the purpose of setting up this Reserve is to meet 
potential dividend payments and reduce the outflow from retained earnings. 

 the available for sale reserve comprises of the cumulative net change in fair value of available-for-sale 
financial investments until the assets are de-recognized or impaired.

2.15. provisions
 the board has recognized provisions for liabilities of uncertain timing or amounts. the provision is 

measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, 
discounted at a pre-tax rate reflecting current market assessments of the time value of money and risks 
specific to the liability.

provisions for legal claims are recognized when; the company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to 
settle the obligation and the amount can be estimated reliably.

the provisions are measured at the present value of the future amount required to settle the obligation 
using a pre-tax rate reflecting the current assessment of the time value of money and specific risks 
relevant for the obligation. the increase in provision due to time passage is recognized as an interest 
expense.

2.16. Trade and Other Receivables
most sales are made on the basis of normal credit terms, and the receivables do not bear interest. 
Where credit is extended beyond normal credit terms, receivables are measured at amortized cost 
using the effective interest method. At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amounts of trade 
and other receivables are reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that the 
amounts are not recoverable.  If so, an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

2.17. trade payables
trade payables are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not bear interest. trade 
payables denominated in a foreign currency are translated into sri lankan rupees using the exchange 
rate at the reporting date. foreign exchange gains or losses are included in other income or other 
expenses.

2.18. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are cash in hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid 
investments, readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes 
in value.

for the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and 
deposits in banks net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Investments with short maturities i.e. three 
months or less from the date of acquisition are also treated as cash equivalents.

2.19. grants & subsidies
Grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all 
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised 
as income over the period necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it 
is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, it is set up as deferred income. 
Where the Company receives non-monetary grants, the asset and that grant are recorded at nominal 
amounts and is released to the income statement over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by 
equal annual installments as follows.

Grants received are credited to a reserve account and amortized to the income statement as follows.

Grant for Iodization plant  10%
Grants for building  2.5%
Grant for pump House  2.5%
Grant for Compensation to employees - Reduce by the compensation paid.

2.20. impairment of assets

2.20.1. Impairment of financial assets
 the etf board assesses at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial 

asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed 
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events 
that have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an ‘incurred loss event’) and that loss event (or 
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial 
assets that can be reliably estimated.
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the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial 
asset is impaired. A financial asset is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence 
of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the 
asset and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset 
that can be reliably estimated. evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors are 
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the 
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable data 
indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flow, such as changes in 
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

2.20.2. Impairment of Non–financial Assets
 the board assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be 

impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the board 
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or 
CGu’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGu 
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable 
amount.

 In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using 
a pre–tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is 
used. these calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded 
companies or other available fair value indicators.

 for assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication 
that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such 
indication exists, the board estimates the assets or CGu’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized 
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the 
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. the reversal is limited so 
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceeds the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized 
for the asset in prior years. such reversal is recognized in the income statement.

 
2.21. Changes in Accounting Policies 

2.21.1. Reclassification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
 the entity reclassified listed units out of the ‘held-for-trading’ category and into the ‘available-for-sale’, 

category as permitted by the sri lanka Accounting standard – lKAs 39 on ‘financial Instruments: 
Recognition and measurement’. since there was no evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term 
profit taking by the entity for the past years these will be reclassified under available for sale category. 
Reclassifications are recorded at fair value at the date of reclassification.

2.21.2. Valuation of Investment property
 the entity obtains valuations performed by external valuer in order to determine the fair value of its 

investment properties. these valuations are based upon assumptions including future rental income, 
anticipated maintenance costs, future development costs and the appropriate discount rate. the valuer 
also makes reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.

2.21.3. fair Value of financial Instruments
 the board determines the fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted, using valuation 

techniques. those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including discount 
rates and estimates of future cash flows. In that regard, the derived fair value estimates cannot always 
be substantiated by comparison with independent markets and, in many cases, may not be capable of 
being realized immediately.

2.21.4. useful lives and residual Values were appropriate for property, plant and Equipment
 the entity tests annually whether, the useful life and residual value estimates were appropriate and in 

accordance with its accounting policy.
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employees’ trust FunD BoarD
notes to tHe FinanCial statements

 group  Company

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

n
ot

e

 rs. ‘000  restated 
 rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  restated 

 rs. ‘000 
5 interest inCome

financial Investments available for sale

financial Investments Held to maturity 5.1  23,442,614  20,008,796  23,404,664  20,005,441 

financial Investments on loans and receivables 5.2  87,686  268,763  87,686  268,763 

 23,530,300  20,277,559  23,492,350  20,274,204 

5.1 Financial investments Held to maturity

Interest on fixed deposit  468,050  32,751  431,390  29,396 

Interest from debenture  195,881  184,916  195,881  184,916 

yield on treasury bond  22,132,320  18,836,118  22,132,320  18,836,118 

margin on treasury bill  157,016  604,096  157,016  604,096 

Interest on repurchase agreements  202,932  114,422  202,932  114,422 

Interest on money market  1,476  1,320  1,476  1,320 

Interest on Custodial a/C  1,459  7,145  170  7,145 

Interest on bonds - power project  283,479  228,028  283,479  228,028 

 23,442,614  20,008,796  23,404,664  20,005,441 

5.2 Financial investments on loans and receivables

Interest on rupee loan  -    169,832  -    169,832 

Interst on Viyana Housing loan  68,443  81,243  68,443  81,243 

Interest on distress loans (special loan)  560  570  560  570 

Interest on Vehicle loan  6,061  5,713  6,061  5,713 

Interest on special distress loan  5,917  5,697  5,917  5,697 

Interest on special festival loan  137  145  137  145 

Interest on special advance  416  -    416  -   

Interest on Computer loan  -    2  -    2 

Interest on staff Hosing loan - smIb  6,077  5,424  6,077  5,424 

Interest on sport Club loan  74  137  74  137 

 87,686  268,763  87,686  268,763 

6 net traDing inCome

net revenue 6.1  1,902,126  893,578  -    -   

(-) Cost of sales  (787,898)  (971,724)  -    -   

 1,114,228  (78,146)  -    -   

6.1 net revenue

Gross revenue  2,182,064  1,010,620  -    -   

(-) Value added tax and national building tax  (279,938)  (117,042)  -    -   

 1,902,126  893,578  -    -   

employees’ trust FunD BoarD
as at 31st DeCemBer, 2016

Business ComBinations anD aCQusition oF non-Controlling interest    

on 1997, Employees’ trust board has acquired 90% of the shares of lanka salt limited (lsl). resultant goodwill is 
amounting to lKr 378,926,440 which had been assumed to be amortized over 05 year period starting from the year of 
acquisition, based on the accounting practice available as of the date of acquisition.

the details of the business combination are as follows:

group

 rs.  rs.

Consideration transferred  470,960,938 

Proportionate share of Recognised Amounts of Identifiable Net Assets

stated Capital  31,500,000 

reserves  60,534,498 

 92,034,498 

goodwill  378,926,440 
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employees’ trust FunD BoarD
notes to tHe FinanCial statements

 group  Company

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

n
ot

e

 rs. ‘000  restated 
 rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  restated 

 rs. ‘000 

7 Dividend income

Investment Held for trading 7.1  298,007  325,340  298,007  325,340 

Investments available for sale 7.2  188,188  35,243  188,188  35,243 

 486,194  360,582  486,194  360,582 

7.1 investment Held for trading

dividends on shares - Quoted  289,059  313,960  289,059  313,960 

dividends on units - Quoted  8,948  11,380  8,948  11,380 

 298,007  325,340  298,007  325,340 

7.2 investments available for sale 

dividend on shares - unquoted  188,188  35,243  188,188  35,243 

 188,188  35,243  188,188  35,243 

8 gain /(loss) on FinanCial assets at Fair value 
tHrougH proFit /(loss)

Current Share Trading Profit  27,166  450,204  27,166  450,204 

Profit / Loss on Long Term Shares  32,835  -    32,835  -   

realized Gain on share reserve  15,395  475,070  15,395  475,070 

fair Value adjustment of units  -    (21,696)  -    (21,696)

fair Value adjustment of shares  (6,804)  (69,727)  (6,804)  (69,727)

 68,592  833,850  68,592  833,850 

9 otHer inCome

property Income - lease rent  3,255  15,093  3,255  15,093 

rent received  386  481 

Profit on Sale of Property ,Plant and Equipment  107  12,923  6  12,358 

surcharges  235,477  232,543  235,477  232,543 

Income on Express Claims  23,777  19,042  23,777  19,042 

staff loan Income  31,409  32,843  29,271  29,049 

sundry Income  4,015  3,710  1,237  1,597 

donation - treasury Granted  10,000  -    10,000  -   

Profit / (Loss) On Car Park (Nawam Mawatha)  31,443  13,395  31,443  13,395 

Profit / (Loss) On Holiday Bungalow  (2,817)  (2,938)  (2,817)  (2,938)

non refundable deposit for registration of suppliers  241  169 

amortisation of grants  3,217  5,361 

revaluation gain on Investment property  200,000  -    200,000  -   

 540,511  332,623  531,650  320,139 

employees’ trust FunD BoarD
notes to tHe FinanCial statements

 group  Company

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

n
ot

e

 rs. ‘000  restated 
 rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  restated 

 rs. ‘000 

10 personal expenses

Wages and salaries 10.1  588,117  611,446  548,210  574,681 

Short-Term Monetary and Non-Monetary Benefits 10.2  354,109  327,838  330,278  318,523 

Defined Benefit Plans 10.3  34,784  26,987  30,212  24,852 

Other Long Term Employee Benefits 10.4  82,402  81,940  77,263  76,333 

 1,059,412  1,048,211  985,963  994,389 

10.1 wages and salaries

salaries  473,055  491,143  436,742  458,218 

directors' fees  2,260  1,343  850  593 

Cost of living allowance  84,741  85,761  84,741  85,761 

overtime 18,496 21,645 16,312 18,555

Holiday pay  9,565  11,554  9,565  11,554 

 588,117  611,446  548,210  574,681 

10.2 Short-Term Monetary and Non-Monetary Benefits

training & development Expenses  4,164  2,477  4,164  2,477 

recruitment Expenses  528  -    528  -   

staff Welfare  27,206  22,013  27,050  21,664 

Incentive  95,206  90,650  88,862  88,344 

overseas training  3,220  1,490  3,220  1,490 

Encashment of  leave  12,425  12,299  12,425  12,299 

bonus  100,072  89,902  83,778  84,253 

reimbursement of medical Expenses  65,180  62,690  64,144  61,679 

staff loan Cost  29,271  29,049  29,271  29,049 

Interest on Housing loans  16,783  17,267  16,783  17,267 

Employees accident Compensation scheme  53  -    53  -   

 354,109  327,838  330,278  318,523 

10.3 Defined Benefit Plans

Interest Cost  21,239  16,110  21,239  16,110 

Current service Cost  13,545  10,877  8,973  8,742 

 34,784  26,987  30,212  24,852 

10.4 Other Long Term Employee Benefits

E.p.f. board's Contribution  68,853  68,486  64,385  63,610 

E.t.f. board's Contribution  13,548  13,454  12,878  12,723 

 82,402  81,940  77,263  76,333 
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employees’ trust FunD BoarD
notes to tHe FinanCial statements

 group  Company

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

n
ot

e

 rs. ‘000  restated 
 rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  restated 

 rs. ‘000 

11 aDministrative expenses

building rent  57,131  59,857  48,140  49,739 

rates  1,398  1,902  805  547 

Electricity Charges  18,472  18,303  18,472  18,280 

telephone Charges  9,103  8,208  9,103  8,208 

Water Charges  1,460  1,567  1,460  1,567 

Consultancy fees  1,861  2,002  763  828 

audit fees  1,164  1,428  603  900 

security Charges  7,596  6,076  7,596  6,076 

legal fees  1,222  797  1,222  797 

Hiring  Charges  7,482  751  5,872  259 

secretarial Expenses  120  150  120  150 

postage & telegrams - admin.  2,209  1,982  2,209  1,982 

travelling & subsistance - admin.  635  759  635  759 

printing & stationery - admin.  2,400  1,876  1,895  1,371 

media & publicity - admin.  351  273  272  14 

It Expenses - admin.  1,206  1,257  1,206  1,257 

advertisement & press notices  2,182  1,239  2,182  1,239 

Vehicle Insurance & license fees  2,459  2,482  2,459  2,482 

newspapers &  periodicals  610  535  610  535 

donations  859  416  50  416 

disciplinary  Inquiries  316  -    316  -   

other  Insurance  -    2  -    2 

Office Upkeep & Requirements  657  209  657  209 

Workers Compensation  -    2,320  -    2,320 

stamp duty  103  175  103  175 

miscellaneous Expenses  9,630  2,705  3,623  2,705 

Vehicle repairs &  maintenance  9,723  11,173  9,623  11,094 

fuel Charges  10,896  10,228  10,608  9,924 

maintenance of building  8,172  6,435  8,172  6,378 

maintenance of  machine,furniture & Equipments  2,098  2,414  2,044  2,397 

 161,514  147,519  140,819  132,608 

12 FinanCe expenses

Custodial   fee  352  333  352  333 

bank Charges  2,907  4,134  2,542  1,638 

Interest expenses  4,699  9,854  -    -   

release of Write back Claims  9  16  9  16 

 7,967  14,336  2,904  1,988 

employees’ trust FunD BoarD
notes to tHe FinanCial statements

 group  Company

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

n
ot

e

 rs. ‘000  restated 
 rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  restated 

 rs. ‘000 

13 memBer expenses

Member Benefits 13.1  393,349  373,882  393,349  373,882 

member services 13.2  45,261  40,651  45,261  40,651 

It services 13.3  15,856  15,076  15,856  15,076 

 454,466  429,610  454,466  429,610 

13.1 Member Benefits 

Death Benefits Scheme  97,518  92,209  97,518  92,209 

permanent disablement  scheme  8,598  6,093  8,598  6,093 

I.o.l. Implanting scheme  4,293  4,909  4,293  4,909 

sramasuwa rekawarana scheme  13,558  13,423  13,558  13,423 

Heart surgery scheme  171,420  91,263  171,420  91,263 

Kidney transplant scheme  3,926  1,292  3,926  1,292 

year 5 scholarship scheme  67,898  116,250  67,898  116,250 

Higher Eduacation scholarship scheme  26,136  48,444  26,136  48,444 

 393,349  373,882  393,349  373,882 

13.2 member services

postage & telegrams - memb.  19,106  18,230  19,106  18,230 

printing & stationery - memb. 13,807 12,340 13,807 12,340

Computer stationery  3,782  3,071  3,782  3,071 

self Employment promotion Expenses  4  55  4  55 

member related Expenses  357  522  357  522 

Employees awareness scheme  445  315  445  315 

travelling & subsistance - memb.  4,830  4,975  4,830  4,975 

media & publicity - memb.  755  235  755  235 

medical Consultat. for members  42  40  42  40 

scholarship Expenses  2,134  868  2,134  868 

 45,261  40,651  45,261  40,651 

13.3 it services

maintenance of Hardware  4,292  4,355  4,292  4,355 

maintenance of software  526  660  526  660 

depreciation - It  5,658  5,407  5,658  5,407 

Insurance - It  29  87  29  87 

rental on leased  lines  5,351  4,568  5,351  4,568 

 15,856  15,076  15,856  15,076 

14 DepreCiation & amortiZation

depreciation for property, plant & Equipment  35,778  36,140  15,290  16,896 

amortization of lease Hold land & development Work  4,882  697 

depreciation/Impairment of biological asset  -    6,678 

 40,660  43,515  15,290  16,896 
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notes to tHe FinanCial statements

 group  Company

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

n
ot

e

 rs. ‘000  restated 
 rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  restated 

 rs. ‘000 

15 inCome tax expenses  2,733,111  2,007,460  2,394,498  2,060,646 

15.1 income tax - etF Board

Income on money market  132  820 

dividend on share  32,770  18,308 

debenture  2,699  5,269 

bond - power project  28,348  22,803 

fixed deposits  43,139  2,940 

treasary bill  15,702  60,410 

treasary bond  2,213,232  1,883,612 

ruppee loan  -    16,983 

repo  20,293  11,442 

smIb Housing loan  6  8 

Income on Express Claims  2,378  1,904 

Interst on Viyana Housing loan  6,844  8,124 

property Income - lease rent  326  1,509 

surcharges  23,279  23,254 

surcharges form 11  269  -   

Interest on distress loans (special loan)  56  57 

Interest on Vehicle loan  606  571 

Interest on special distress loan  592  570 

Interest on special festival loan  14  15 

Interest on special advance  42  -   

Interest on Computer loan  -    -   

Interest on staff Hosing loan - smIb  601  534 

Interest on sport Club loan  7  14 

sundry Income  124  160 

Profit / (Loss) On Car Park (NW) + H/B  3,041  1,339 

 2,394,498  2,060,646 

less :-

notional tax Credit

tax paid source (2,249,227)  (1,955,464)

tax payable to Ird  (107,094)  (67,131)

 38,177  38,052 

15.2 income tax - lanka salt limited

Current Income tax charge  198,882  -   

under provision of current taxes in respect of prior years  -    2,207 

deferred Income tax  -    -   

deferred taxation Charge/(reversal)  139,732  (55,394)

Income tax expense reported in the Income Statement  338,613  (53,186)

employees’ trust FunD BoarD
notes to tHe FinanCial statements

 group  Company

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

n
ot

e

 rs. ‘000  restated 
 rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  restated 

 rs. ‘000 

16 Other Financial Assets Held For Trading

Quoted share Investment (trading)  1,955,837  1,494,287  1,955,837  1,494,287 

less: provision for diminuation in Value of Quoted shares  -    -    -    -   

 1,955,837  1,494,287  1,955,837  1,494,287 

17 investment in subsidiary

lanka salt limited  -    -    470,961  470,961 

 -    -    470,961  470,961 

18 Financial investments - available-For-sale

Quoted share Investment long term  8,788,639  8,427,668  8,788,639  8,427,668 

unquoted share Investment  89,992  75,299  89,992  75,299 

Quoted units  330,886  334,732  330,886  334,732 

promissory notes  12,174  12,174  12,174  12,174 

shares - delisted & under liquidation  25,228  25,228  25,228  25,228 

less: provision for diminution in Value shares  (25,228)  (25,228)  (25,228)  (25,228)

         Impairment on promissory notes  (12,174)  (12,174)  (12,174)  (12,174)

         Impairment on Equity Investment  (283)  -    (283)  -   

 9,209,233  8,837,699  9,209,233  8,837,699 

“The value of equity investments not held for trading is periodically reviewed to identify significant or prolonged decline in value. For this 
purpose the management considers objective evidence of impairment that is not limited to declining market value but qualitative factors 
such as strategic intent and intrinsic value. accordingly impairment provisions have recongnised in respect of certain equity investments 
(amounting to LKR 282,738) where there is a significant or prolonged decline in value and there is no reasonable possibility of a rever-
sal of the situation. Such provisions shall recongise through profit or loss.

19 Financial invetments Held to maturity

treasury  bonds 196,302,449 187,759,682 196,302,449 187,759,682 

treasury bills  3,624,832  4,269,404  3,624,832  4,269,404 

Quoted - debenture  2,194,114  1,653,914  2,194,114  1,653,914 

less: Impirement on debenture  (7,450)  (7,450)  (7,450)  (7,450)

fixed  deposits  15,783,095  70,192  15,127,000  -   

repurchase agreement  2,846,294  1,750,702  2,846,294  1,750,702 

debentures unquoted  -    200,000  -    200,000 

bonds - power project  2,367,270  2,679,635  2,367,270  2,679,635 

223,110,604 198,376,078 222,454,509 198,305,886 
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notes to tHe FinanCial statements

 group  Company

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

n
ot

e

 rs. ‘000  restated 
 rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  restated 

 rs. ‘000 

20 Financial assets - loans & receivables

Housing finance - n.d.b  642,046  667,860  642,046  667,860 

staff loans  -    -    -    -   

distress loan (special loan)  13,723  13,737  13,723  13,737 

special distress loan  176,103  169,824  176,103  169,824 

festival advance  571  610  571  610 

special festival loan  849  917  849  917 

special advance  17,216  32,484  3,275  4,660 

Vehicle loan  167,925  170,987  167,925  170,987 

smIb-staff Housing loan  339,383  307,943  339,383  307,943 

 1,357,817  1,364,362  1,343,876  1,336,538 

21 Other Assets

accrued Income 21.1  7,015,577  6,246,206  7,015,577  6,246,206 

receivables & prepayments 21.2  2,157,048  1,712,072  2,123,869  1,700,924 

tax recoverable 21.3  97,805  151,626  68,054  98,430 

Inventories 21.4  321,077  103,878  6,512  7,454 

 9,591,507  8,213,782  9,214,011  8,053,014 

21.1 accrued income

Interest receivable  7,043,442  6,274,072  7,043,442  6,274,072 

less: provision against doubtful Income  (27,866)  (27,866)  (27,866)  (27,866)

 7,015,577  6,246,206  7,015,577  6,246,206 

21.2 receivables & prepayments

Contribution receivable  1,806,052  1,547,314  1,806,052  1,547,314 

trade debtors  7,561  6,175  -    -   

money order Control  5,385  3,590  5,385  3,590 

postal franking machine Imprest  772  457  772  457 

sundry debtors  177,052  12,493  177,052  12,493 

dues from Ex-employees  1,913  1,523  1,913  1,523 

security deposits  4,039  2,989  4,039  2,989 

prepayment  7,155  8,356  7,155  8,356 

pre - paid staff loan Cost  119,273  121,324  119,273  121,324 

advance payment  27,347  6,775  1,729  1,802 

deposit - summervill & Co.  -    21,900  -    21,900 

less: transfer to other Comprehensive Income  -    (21,900)  -    (21,900)

medical advance  -    15  -    15 

loan - sports Club  499  1,060  499  1,060 

 2,157,048  1,712,072  2,123,869  1,700,924 

employees’ trust FunD BoarD
notes to tHe FinanCial statements

 group  Company

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

n
ot

e

 rs. ‘000  restated 
 rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  restated 

 rs. ‘000 

21.3 tax receivable - etfb

tax recoverable

tax paid in advance  97,805  151,626  68,054  98,430 

 97,805  151,626  68,054  98,430 

21.4 inventories 

Common salt stock  242,991  35,981  -    -   

potassium Iodated stock  3,482  1,516  -    -   

Work in progress            23,604  19,404  -    -   

Consumables and spares   44,489  39,524  -    -   

less: provision for Consumables and spares  -    -    -    -   

stock of stationery & Consumable  5,030  6,146  5,030  6,146 

library  172  -    172  -   

Holiday bungalow Inventory  1,310  1,308  1,310  1,308 

 321,077  103,878  6,512  7,454 
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employees’ trust FunD BoarD
notes to tHe FinanCial statements

 group  Company

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

n
ot

e

 rs. ‘000  restated 
 rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  restated 

 rs. ‘000 

23 leaseHolD property

Cost 

at 1 January  20,910  20,910  -    -   

additions  -    -    -    -   

at 31 December  20,910  20,910  -    -   

accumulated amortization

balance as at 1st January  14,637  13,940  -    -   

Charge for the year  697  697  -    -   

Balance as at 31 December  15,334  14,637  -    -   

net Book value as at 31 December  5,576  6,273  -    -   

24 intangiBle assets

balance as at 1st January  266  369  266  369 

amortization during the year  (74)  (103)  (74)  (103)

balance as at 31 december  192  266  192  266 

25 investment property

balance as at 1st January  3,200,000  3,200,000  3,200,000  3,200,000 

Change in fair Value  200,000  -    200,000  -   

balance as at 31 december  3,400,000  3,200,000  3,400,000  3,200,000 

employees’ trust FunD BoarD
notes to tHe FinanCial statements

26 interest Bearing Borrowings

lanka salt limited 

 31st December 2016  31st December 2015

amount 
repay-

able
Within 1 

year

amount 
repayable

after 1 
year

total amount 
repay-

able
Within 1 

year

amount 
repay-

able
after 1 
year

total

 rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000

bank loans                                         27.1  7,260  -    7,260  24,038  7,260  31,298 

finance leases  5,157  12,378  17,535  3,565  11,197  14,762 

bank overdrafts  202,329  -    202,329  -    7,607  7,607 

 214,746  12,378  227,124  27,603  26,064  53,667 

employees’ trust FunD BoarD
notes to tHe FinanCial statements

as at.
01.01.2016

rs. ‘000

loan
obtained 
rs. ‘000

repay-
ment

rs. ‘000

as at.
30.09.2016

rs. ‘000

n
ot

e

 rs. ‘000  restated 
 rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  restated 

 rs. ‘000 

26.1 Bank loans

Hatton national bank plC  16,020  -    8,760  7,260 

bank of Ceylon  15,278  -    15,278  -   

 31,298  -    24,038  7,260 

27 grants & suBsiDies

lanka salt limited

iodized 
plant

 rs. '000 

Building
 rs. '000 

pump 
House

 rs. '000 

Compen-
sation to 
employ-

ees
 rs. '000 

iodine for 
plant

 rs. '000 

total
2016

 rs. '000 

total
2015

 rs. '000 

Cost

as at 1 January  19,515  41,124  1,387  4,260  2,550  68,837  68,837 

as at 31 December  19,515  41,124  1,387  4,260  2,550  68,837  68,837 

amortization

as at 1 January  16,107  8,825  301  -    2,347  27,579  22,218 

reversal during the year  1,952  1,028  35  -    203  3,217  5,361 

as at 31 December  18,058  9,853  335  -    2,550  30,796  27,579 

written Down value

as at 31 December  1,457  31,272  1,052  4,260  -    38,041  41,258 
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employees’ trust FunD BoarD
notes to tHe FinanCial statements

 group  Company

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

n
ot

e

 rs. ‘000  restated 
 rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  restated 

 rs. ‘000 
28 DeFineD BeneFit oBligation

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 01st January  356,924  300,119  193,085  146,459 

Interest Cost  79,648  38,250  21,239  16,110 

Current service Cost  8,973  8,742  8,973  8,742 

Benefit Paid  (43,337)  (19,982)  (20,195)  (8,020)

actuarial (Gains) / losses on obligations  (500)  29,794  (500)  29,794 

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 31st December  401,707  356,924  202,603  193,085 

29 otHer liaBilities

accounts payables and sundry Creditors 29.1  406,670  355,606  101,501  158,766 

deferred tax liabilities 30.2  100,813  -    -    -   

 507,483  355,606  101,501  158,766 

29.1 accounts payables and sundry Creditors

Retained Tax on Claims & Benefits Paid  15,214  12,730  15,214  12,730 

trade and other payables 29.1.1  305,169  196,840  -    -   

stamp duty payable on Claims  604  528  604  528 

unpaid Emoluments  6  142  6  142 

stamp duty payable on salaries  93  93  93  93 

superintendent  of  Epf  11,796  11,775  11,796  11,775 

sundry Creditors  38,772  96,196  38,772  96,196 

unclaimed refunds  5,310  4,754  5,310  4,754 

Unpaid Death Benefits  9,992  9,914  9,992  9,914 

E.t.f. payable  1,415  1,412  1,415  1,412 

p.a.y.E. tax  2,498  2,957  2,498  2,957 

Vat  731  534  731  534 

n.b.tax   106  96  106  96 

unclaimed scholarship  2,113  2,258  2,113  2,258 

Returned  Benefit  16,087  15,305  16,087  15,305 

library fund  45  -    45  -   

board anniversary fund  (3,376)  -    (3,376)  -   

refundable deposit  14  -    14  -   

salary deductions Clearance  80  72  80  72 

 406,670  355,606  101,501  158,766 

Ground rent payable  

 lanka salt limiteD

 31st December 2016 
 rs. ‘000 

 31st December 2015 
 rs. ‘000 

29.1.1 Trade and Other Payables

Financial liabilities  39,615  50,098 

trade payables  9,890  8,212 

salt transport payable  16,785  32,823 

deposits payables  18,952  905 

dividends payable  -    16,215 

Ground rent payable

non financial liabilities  127,803  35,593 

accrued Expenses  26,640  5,934 

other payables  26,356  7,931 

Value added tax payables  39,129  39,129 

Contractor payables  305,169  196,840 

 lanka salt limiteD

Capital allow-
ances for tax 

purposes 

Defined 
Benefit Plans 

grants and
subsidies

Deferred tax 
attributable to 

tax losses
total

 rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000 

as at 01.01.2015  99,315  (43,025)  (12,339)  (27,476)  16,475 

Charge (credit) to profit or loss for the year  5,595  (2,850)  787  (58,926)  (55,394)

as at 01.01.2016  104,910  (45,875)  (11,552)  (86,402)  (38,919)

Charge (credit) to profit or loss for the year  62,304  (9,875)  901  86,402  139,732 

as at 31.12.2016  167,213  (55,749)  (10,651)  -    100,813 

deferred tax liability  (167,213)  (104,910)

deferred tax asset  66,401  57,427 

unutilized business loss C/f  -    86,402 

net Deferred tax liability  (100,813)  38,919 
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employees’ trust FunD BoarD
notes to tHe FinanCial statements

 group  Company

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

 31st 

december 
2016 

 31st 

december 
2015 

 rs. ‘000  restated 
 rs. ‘000  rs. ‘000  restated 

 rs. ‘000 

30 provisions

provision for audit fee  1,990  3,300  1,990  3,300 

provision for telephone  709  208  709  208 

provision for Electricity  90  59  90  59 

provision for Water  105  30  105  30 

provn. for Employees' accident Compensation scheme  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000 

provision for bonus  153  584  153  584 

provision for leave Encashment  10,488  10,804  10,488  10,804 

provision for postage  779  718  779  718 

provision for Higher Education scholarship  71,528  87,300  71,528  87,300 

provision for year 5 scholarship  -    108,750  -    108,750 

 87,841  213,754  87,841  213,754 
auditor 
general
Report 2016
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Observatons of the Board
for the Auditor General's Report

2016
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2.3.1   sri lanka accounting standards

(a)      noted for future action.

(b)    sri lanka accounting standard 16
 In terms of section 51 of the sri lanka Accounting standard 16, if it is deemed to have changed 

the method of the depreciation of assets and their residual life span annually, it is stated that the said 
adjustment could be accounted for as a difference in the accounting estimate in terms of the sri lanka 
Accounting standard 8.

 It is our conclusion that the use of an asset for 25 years and depreciating such an asset in use 
under reducing balance method should not be a reason to change the existing depreciation policy in 
accordance with section 51 of the sri lanka Accounting standard 16.

      
             Cost of the assets amounting to lKR 441 million referred to in the audit query has been reached to 

lKR 176 million as at 31/12/2016 and a sum of lKR 54 million out of such assets represents lands 
and buildings whereas the remainder of assets worth a net value of lKR 122 million represents motor 
vehicles, office equipment, furniture and fittings and computer accessories that are made use of by the 
board on day to day   basis. In pursuance of the accounting policies of the board, the reducing balance 
method is applied for the purpose of depreciation of assets and until such time an asset is disposed of 
after determining as being unfit for use, the reducing balance thereof is continued to show in the books. 
therefore, necessity has not yet been arisen to change remaining lifetime and the method of annual 
depreciation of the Assets. 

(c)    sri lanka accounting standard 39 

(i)     not in agreement with your observations.
 even though the assumption of a value of an investment less than that of the fair value of its cost in 

accordance with section 61 of the sri lanka Accounting standard 39 would be one of the factors that 
may be considered a permanent impairment of the investment, that is not the sole factor. In accordance 
with section 61 of the sri lanka Accounting standard 39, the facts such as technical aspects, market 
conditions, economic factors and legal scenarios that would have an impact on the future results of the 
contemplated investments should have to be studied in greater extent.

 
 the investment analysts of the board regularly engage in detailed study on all investments in the 

composition of investments and are also educating the board of directors on monthly basis about the 
price variations of the market. the board of directors has not decided on any investment to write down 
to profit or loss Account considering that there was such a permanent impairment occurred in respect 
of the year 2016. 

         
 However, several investments of the year 2017 have already been written down to the profit or loss 

Account after having considered as being permanently impaired and yet another several investments 
are expected to be so written down at the end of the year 2017. therefore, the quoted investments 
decided upon by the management as being permanently impaired after such a systematic study will be 
accounted for in the books in compliance with the provisions of the the Accounting standards.

(ii)     your observation cannot be agreed with.
 despite the fact that the deceleration of a market value of a share in between 20% or 30% over a short 

term would be one matter from amongst a very large number of aspects to be taken into consideration 
in order to reckon that there might be permanent loss of capital, treating the investment in listed shares 

market risk

as being permanently impaired based only on the deceleration of the fair value of a share is a statement 
that is not correct in accordance with the section 59 of sri lanka Accounting standard no. 39.

 When looking at the recent behaviour of the Colombo stock exchange, for most of the investments, 
there seems to be a situation where it evolves definable levels that could be considered as substantial 
investments and the investments to be considered in the long term. However, any of these investments, 
as stated in section 59 of the sri lanka Accounting standard 39 for the purpose of identifying the 
evaluation of financial investments, has not shown any such other objective evidence as a decrease in 
profit contributing beneficially to permanent loss of capital, a decrease in the earnings of a share and a 
decrease in net assets.

 furthermore, despite the fact that there was an apparent decrease in the market prices of quoted 
investments at the time when the audit query was raised, such notes as at present have assumed a 
position of generating capital gains in excess of the cost of investments and such percentage in variation 
in the ordinary investments has improved promisingly.

 Accordingly, a detailed study and analysis on the following matters has to be undertaken in order to 
consider an asset or group of asset as being impaired in accordance with section 59 of the sri lanka 
Accounting standard 39. 

 If and only if, there is objective evidence of likely impairment as a result of one or more events that 
has occurred after the initial recognition of a financial asset and that loss event has an impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of such financial asset or group of assets that has been reliably estimated, 
the said financial asset or group of assets may be impaired and allowed to have incurred impairment 
losses. It might not be possible to identify single or separate occurrences that could result in the 
impairment. A combined event or various other events might have caused the impairment. the losses 
anticipated as a prior result of an event occurring in the future is not recognized despite the proximation 
of possibility to an extent whatsoever of such losses being incurred.

          
    the holder of the assets, at the time of the occurrence of the loss events, should pay attention to the 

following observations and data contained in the objective evidence made use of for the impairment of a 
financial asset or group of financial assets. 

(a) A significant financial difficulty of the issuer or bearer of the liability
(b)   breach of agreement such as default in principal or interest payment
(c) Relief granted on financial difficulties experienced by the debtor due to economic and legal reasons 

the grantor might not otherwise take into consideration
(d) the possibility that the debtor will succumb to bankruptcy or subject to financial reorganization
(e)   there is no observable active market for financial assets owing to financial difficulties
(f)   A measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flow in the group financial assets that indicates 

observable data including the following in spite of the fact that the decrease in each of the financial 
asset    constituted in the group remains hitherto unrecognizable,

(i) An unfavourable change in the status of payments of debtors in the group (eg: increase in 
payments due to default or existing credit card holders who have reached the prescribed 
credit limit whilst continuing to pay the minimum monthly fee.)

(ii) Correlation with the national or provincial economic conditions for defaulting on the assets 
in the group

 (eg: Increase in the unemployment ratio within the geographical territory of the debtor, 



EmployEEs’ TrusT Fund Board
AnnuAl RepoRt 2016

EmployEEs’ TrusT Fund Board
AnnuAl RepoRt 2016 349348

decrease in prices of the properties under mortgage in such areas, decrease in oil 
prices for loan properties of the oil producers or unfavourable changes taking place in the 
industry affecting the debtors in the group.)

 furthermore, in addition to the circumstances referred to in section 59 as per para 61 of the 
sri lanka Accounting standard no. 39, information with substantial changes taking place in 
the technological market or economic or legal environment in such a manner as to cause 
an adverse impact leading to the level of un-recoverability of the cost of the investments in 
shares could be adduced as objective evidence for the impairment of investments.

 However, the board of directors during the year 2017 has decided to dispose following 
investments that substantiate the most of the factors referred to above constituting the 
composition of the investments.

Institution no. of shares   rs. amount rs. sale price rs.  loss

p.C. House         188"500 113"280 18"668 94"611

the finance         30"600 306"000 156"385 149"614

browns 

Investments  59"400 142"560 105"722 36"837

blue diamonds           52 182 71 110

farm Garden               49 3"062 1"497 1"565

total loss                                                                                282"738

 the optimum unfavorable impact that could have happened to the profit owing to the shares that were 
subject to permanent impairment as stated above is  Rs. 282,738.

 As such, action has been taken to write down the investments of the above 05 institutions from the 
investments referred to in the audit query to the profit and loss Account and to show the price variation 
in the rest of the investments in the Comprehensive profit and loss Account as a change in price.

2.3.2 unexplained differences

 According to the tax computation of the board prepared for the year of Assessment 2016/2017, even 
though the gross liability of the tax as at 31 december 2016 was Rs. 2,287,404,225/-, it comprises 
of the cost of the withholding tax deducted at source within the value shown as Rs. 2,394,498,000/- 
in the statement of Income. the said value is Rs. 107,093,775/. the difference amounting to Rs. 
43,663,000/- between the tax liability and the statement of financial position according to the income 
tax report comprises of the accrued tax in respect of the taxes deducted at the source from the quoted 
debenture interest and the fixed deposit interest received during 2017 in relation to the year 2016.

2.3.3  lack of Evidence for audit
      

(i) the land situated at nawam mawatha owned by the board has been revalued by the Valuer of the 
Government. As the fee charged by the Government Valuer for furnishing the relevant valuation report 
was so exorbitant, a request has been made from the institutions concerned to have the said fee 
reduced. necessary action is being taken to obtain the report concerned as at present.

              
 furthermore, the profit generated through the revaluation of this land which has been classified as 

investment assets, though accounted for as a reserve under the Available for sale (Afs), the revaluation 

profit of the land situated at nawam mawatha was transferred to the loss or profit Account in terms of 
the sri lanka Accounting standard 40.

(ii) this is an arithmetical error occurred in the computation of the carrying cost of the treasury bonds. It has 
now been rectified. A disclosure in regard to such rectification has also been made under note no.4.4.1 
(2) in the financial statements. moreover, I would like to state that the mere fact that the income realized 
from the treasury bonds during the year under review has been computed accurately is one of the best 
evidence to substantiate the accuracy of the the said adjustment.  

2.4  observations on accounts receivable and payable

(a) before year 2011 -  to be corrected as “passed student of year 5 scholarship exams”.

 year 5 scholarship benefit payments had been made through national savings bank up to year 2009. 
bank had returned unpaid scholarship benefit fund as beneficiaries had not made claims thereon. out 
of this amount, a sum of Rs. 263, 324.42 was paid for 16 students after identification. In addition, 25 
students were identified later and a sum amounting to Rs. 404, 953.75 is being paid currently. balance 
83 students have been informed to their newly found addresses by registered post. Arrangements will 
be made to pay their benefits once they produce their identity.  

    
(b)  Retained death benefits account balance is Rs. 9, 992,461.53 (for 842 claimants) as at 31st 

december, 2016. there are instances where more than one claimant exists or determined to share the 
unclaimed balance of a deceased member.  since all such claimants have not submitted their claims at 
one instance or some of them have failed to submit adequate documents and the prevalence of long 
term unsettled testamentary cases were also there.  therefore, the share of claim entitled to others is 
released while retaining the unclaimed balance in the accounts. Hence, the above balance remains 
unattended in these accounts as usual.  31 claimants have been identified and Rs. 680, 749.93 had 
been paid, from January 2017 to october 2017. outstanding liability balance is Rs. 9,311,711.60 (for 
811 claimants) as at 31/10/2017.

 

 these benefits will be paid in future as well once claimants produce their identity and relevant documents 
correctly. Returned benefit (slips) account balance is Rs. 16, 087,267.34 relevant for 1274 claimants as at 
31/12/2016. this account reflects the value of the refunds which had been directly sent to the bank accounts 
of the claimants and returned by the banks due to non availability of adequate details of such claimants. 

 
 Arrangements have been made to inform to the claimants and action would be taken to repay these 

money to the relevant claimants on receipt of the correct information.  It has been identified 334 
claimants from January 2017 to october 2017 and Rs. 5,026,562.89 has been paid. outstanding 
liability balance is Rs. 11,060,704.45 for 940 claimants as at 31/10/2017.

 beneficiary applicants are being made aware through regional offices and mobile services and of the 
amount of benefits that are being paid to the relevant members. balance of returned benefits (cheque) 
account as at 31/12/2016 is Rs. 5,310,499.29 for 1026 claimants. these benefits are being paid 
while calling them to get the benefits. Relevant benefit value is sent by cheques through registered post 
to the beneficiary applicants, who do not have access to the slip transaction system, and, if any cheque 
is returned through above means, they would be directed to the relevant bank.  

 even if the cheques were sent, but not realized, those values are reflected in the above account.  
Accordingly, Rs. 259, 650.53 has been paid to 68 claimants, from January 2017 to october 2017.  
outstanding liability balance is Rs. 5,050,848.76 for 958 claimants as at 31/10/2017.
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 balances of returned benefit accounts (relevant to the period from 2001 to 2005) are transferred 
to member fund account and   then to individual member accounts (after activating those individual 
member accounts) in the memorandum ledger, as per the decision of the management committee held 
on 09/12 /2015.

 beneficiary applicants through regional offices and mobile services are being made aware of the amount 
of benefits that are being paid to the relevant members.

2.5.   non  Compliance with laws, rules and regulations and 
management decisions

(i) Although the shop and office employees’ Act applies to the employees trust fund board employees,  from 
the inception the employees are granted leave by combining the provisions of both the establishments 
Code and shop and office employees’  Act.  As per the opinion of the employers federation of Ceylon 
(efC) withdrawing of the existing privileges may cause damages to the Industrial peace.

(ii) overtime is paid as per terms and conditions of the shop and office employees’ Act.

(iii) overtime is paid to the employees trust fund board employees as per terms and conditions of the 
shop and office employees’ Act and the practices of the Industry.

3.    Financial review 

3.1 financial results

             since there is no conclusion made that a permanent impairment of financial assets as shown in detail 
under para 2.3.1 (c) (ii) has been caused, the financial results described in the accounts are correct.

3.2  analytical financial review 

(a)       As described in detail under para 2.3.1 (c) (ii) above, the declaration of interest and dividends at the 
rate of 9% does not give rise to a disadvantageous situation on the financial performance of the board 
as the impairment value of the long term investments is only a sum of Rs. 282,738 and the carried 
forward value of the Revenue Reserve after adjusting 9% for interest and dividends amounts to Rs. 
3,449,498,000.           

(b) Agreed with your observations.

(c) Agreed with your observations. 

(d) Agreed with your observations. However, it cannot be arrived at a conclusion that the income of the 
board should improve in line with the speed of the increase in income itself in the fund. because the 
improvement in the income of the fund is determined by the returns of the investments that have already 
been made and the portion of the member fund that was on the increase during a period of one year 
alone cannot make a substantial impetus towards the income.  

3.3 legal action instituted by or against the board 
 

 Agreed with your observations. the legal division of the board is in the process of taking all necessary 
measures to wind up matters involving relevant court cases expeditiously.

4. operating review

4.1 performance

(a) 62% of the labour market in sri lanka represents the informal sector and most of such employees run 
their own domestic, small and medium scale businesses. furthermore, a streamlined process has 
already been initiated for the purpose of enrolling members to the fund through an entrepreneurial 
promotion programme of the national Crafts Council and the programme implemented by the ministry of 
national policies and economic Affairs for the groups selected for providing loans with no interest to small 
businesses by way of awareness programmes across each of the Grama niladhari divisions. these 
groups who are not operating under an employer would have to seeing to make their contributions to 
the fund by themselves and as such, they show a less tendency to apply for their own membership. 

(b) the main reason why the employees provident fund pays increased benefits in comparison to the 
employees trust fund board is that they gain an annual yield through investments in fixed income 
securities to an extent of 94% approximately as against the employees trust fund board.

(i) benefits of the employees provident fund, except for the specific circumstances, are paid to female 
employees when they complete 50 years of age and to male employees, when they reach the age 
of 55 years. Accordingly, the funds of the employees provident fund could be diverted to long term 
investments. However, as the members of the employees trust fund are able to draw their benefits 
by 5 year periods, the board must be more vigilant on the short term liquidity position when making 
investment decisions. As you are also aware, a high rate of interest is offered for long term investments 
in the local financial market whereas the rate of interest for mid term investments relatively assumes a 
less value. the employees provident fund has raked in the benefit of the favourable rates of interest as a 
result of such long term investments.

 furthermore, the employees trust fund board had no access to go for the purchases of treasury 
bonds in the secondary market until the beginning of the year 2015 and nor has the approval to sell the 
treasury bonds in the secondary market up until now. In view of these circumstances, ability to make full 
use of the opportunities in the financial market has been dampened. 

 moreover, the board as at present has introduced 10 beneficiary schemes for the sake of the fund 
members and the board for this purpose incurs a cost of Rs. 600 million approximately on an annual 
basis. As the employees provident fund does not possess beneficiary methods of this nature, it has a 
favourable direct impact on their profit portfolios. 

 It is because of the two basic factors above, the employees provident fund in comparison to the 
employees trust fund has offered a benefit of 10.5% during the year 2016. It is also the expectation 
of the employees trust fund board to give the members an enhanced benefit package pursuant to 
achieving an optimum return from the investments in the foreseeable future.

(ii) there is no impediment in making the declaration of the dividends of profit retained in accordance with 
the sri lanka Accounting standards.  As such, the distribution of the retained dividends of profit is 
undertaken with the hope of providing a maximum benefit to the members as was practiced since past. 

(iii) this observation cannot be agreed with. the prime objective of maintaining a dividend equalization 
Reserve is to have funds procured in such a manner as not to interrupt other operational activities of the 
institution in order that the institution concerned can maintain the percentage of dividends paid during the 
times of entity’s drop in profits at an appropriate level. Accordingly, these funds have been made use of 
for offering the members a fair percentage of dividends as and when required. 
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 moreover, I would like to bring to your notice that there is no obstruction whatsoever imposed by the 
employees trust fund Act, no. 46 of 1980 to make use of the dividends retained for the purpose of the 
declaration of dividends or dividend equalization Reserve for that matter.

 furthermore, the percentages of amounts in the dividend equalization Reserve and the retained profits 
made use of as against the interest and dividends paid to the members during the past 02 years have 
been set out below.

year

dividends and 
Interest paid
(rs. million)

provision of funds for interest and 
dividends

percentage
(From the profits 

earned)
 
%

percentage
(from reserve)

%
from the 

profits earned 
during the year

(rs. million)

reserves
(rs. million) 

2013 15"841 15"498 343 9'783 0'217

2014 17"624 17"109 515 9'708 0'292

 It is accordingly evident that there is no adverse impact caused at any given time for paying dividends as 
stated in your observation in view of the fact that it has been drawn a very negligible percentage from the 
dividend equalization Reserve in comparison to the dividends paid during the past two years. 

 Accordingly, it has no impact whatsoever on the future earnings of the members in drawing an immaterial 
amount of only 0.2% from the dividend equalization Reserve created by the help of profits earned from 
the preceding years for the very purpose of paying dividends during the years under review. 

(c)    the values of beneficiary payments for active members should not be considered as operational 
expenses. this value is paid for active members as a benefit.  Hence these values are not included in 
operational expenses.

(d)    In order to study and develop a new computer system for the employees trust fund with the financial 
and technical assistance of Information and Communication technology Agency (ICtA) to cater to the 
present business process requirements, etf signed a memorandum of understanding with ICtA in the 
year 2016.  

 Accordingly re-engineering of etf computer systems commenced and before the development of the 
new system, management decided to do a business process Improvement study with the assistance 
of ICtA to identify the changes and improvements to be done to the present business process and 
systems which are more than 10 years old.  Hence, it was unable to develop and introduce the new 
Computer system in the year 2016.

 Hence, necessary steps have already been taken to introduce new Computer system using latest 
technological advancements with the assistance of ICtA, to cater to all stake holders of the employees 
trust fund during the years 2017/2018.

 furthermore, necessary steps have already been taken in the year 2017 to implement disaster 
Recovery solution using latest technological advancements during the year 2018 even though it was 
unable to implement the disaster Recovery solution in the year 2016.  

4.2     Investment of funds

 former deputy minister Hon. Harsha de silva during his visit to the board on 20.05.2015 pointed 

out that not having a CfA qualified person to obtain advisory services for the board administering an 
investment fund over lKR 200 billion was a disadvantage and advised to have the services from a CfA 
qualified person obtained immediately. 

 Accordingly, as an initial step, board approval was obtained to receive services from a CfA qualified 
advisor of the ndb Wealth management.

 the proposed to provide such services for a monthly fee of lKR 25,000. However, due to no firm 
agreement with regard to certain clauses, both parties could not sign the agreement.

 After obtaining the approval of the board, it was decided to obtain consultancy services from the 
Investment Advisors commencing from 27.07.2015. since the monthly fee was revised by them in their 
subsequent agreement to Rs. 75,000, it was not forwarded for the approval of the board.

 As the Investment division consist of senior employees possessing required skills and experiences, 
investment decisions relating to purchase of Government securities during this period were executed 
with the support of the investment advisors as well.

 furthermore, officials of the board used knowledge and experiences of consultants on secondary 
market activities. the only information given with regard to the board to consultants was the amount of 
money to be invested and no other information was made available to them.

 Interest rates mooted by the primary dealers are not merely specific or confidential by any means that are 
given only to the board. furthermore, the employees trust fund board was not bound to adhere to the 
directives given by advisors on the same basis, as there were instances where decisions were derived 
using the knowledge and skills of the officials of the division. since we have discontinued the purchase 
of treasury bonds from the secondary market as at present, assistance of the investment advisors was 
no longer obtained.

(a), (b), (c)

 Audit queries raised in section 4.2 (b), 4.2 (c), 4.2 (d) primarily draw attention towards losses occurred 
as a consequence of purchasing bonds via the secondary market on certain days, following bid 
rejections by the Central bank of sri lanka due to submission of bids at higher rates. It is realistic to 
accept the fact that, it is not possible to invest at each and every auction at higher rates. even though 
setbacks could be experienced at times, by and large, going for investments at a higher Weighted 
Average yield (W.A.y.) of the year than the W.A.y., is a winning situation. If the total amount invested at 
the W.A.y. of the auction based on the bids submitted by us, the return to the board would have been 
11.75%. However, we, overall, had secured an interest rate of 12.02% as per the Annexure 1.

 furthermore, according to the market rates mentioned in the section 4.3 (d), both employees’ trust 
fund board and employees’ provident fund submitted bids over the market rate and in certain instances 
the employees’ trust fund board had submitted bids over the rate of employees’ provident fund and 
had met with success. employees’ provident fund would have submitted bids at lower rates compared 
to our rates, since they wanted to invest a substantial amount of money at that instance it was so felt. 
We did not have any prior knowledge concerning the bids placed by the employees’ provident fund. 

 by and large, our yield on investment in treasury bonds was maintained at 12.02%. In some instances 
the board had purchased short term treasury bonds at lower rates compared with the rates of long 
term treasury bonds. It is a normal market condition.
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(d) As per the Investment policy, the board does not have the authority to sell Government securities in the 
secondary market as at present. furthermore, with the intention of achieving capital gains, the board 
should sell high yield generating Government securities when the market interest rate is down. However, 
total funds generated from these transactions should be reinvested at the prevailing market rate, i.e. at 
a lower rate. Consent of the board of directors had not been granted to sell Government securities in 
the secondary market since it could lead to keep only low interest generating securities in the future. In 
line with the policy of the board, a higher percentage of investment should be made in treasury bills and 
treasury bonds. However, in the future, it will be considered to sell treasury bonds in the secondary 
market without holding the securities until their maturity. 

(e) It is not mandatory to become a primary dealer of the Central bank of sri lanka for us to place bids. 
Getting access to direct bidding facility is sufficient for this purpose. further, it is not a prerequisite to 
become a primary dealer to get access to the direct bidding facility. there are prerequisites to be fulfilled 
to be a primary dealer. for example, in an auction, it is required to place bids for securities worth 1/10 of 
the total value of the offer. Various transactions with different parties should be done in this connection. 
A mechanism should be established to obtain funds from outside parties for repo transactions, and this 
cannot be executed under the prevailing legal framework. employees provident fund does not hold 
primary dealership at present. A request has been made to obtain direct bidding facility on 22.11.2016 
and a reminding letter has been dispatched to the Central bank of sri lanka on 08.03.2017 as well. 
However, a response is yet to be received.

(f) the procedure followed by the board to purchase bonds from the secondary market is given below.

i. Calling bids from all primary dealers.
ii. summarizing received bid prices.
iii. Conveying the anticipated interest rate, tenure and the amount to be invested to primary 

dealers who have sent bids.
iv. purchasing from primary dealers who can match with interest rate and maturity expectations of 

the board.

 As a general practice, the board requests bids via fax from all primary dealers. However, only a few 
primary dealers responded to our fax. though our rate and tenure are conveyed to dealers responding 
to our purchase inquiry, purchase is done only from primary dealers who can meet our expectations. 
even if we call bids from all primary dealers, the ultimate decision of responding or making a purchasing 
order purely depends on the capacity of the respective dealers. 

 through the board paper dated 20.06.2016, the board of directors was informed that two primary 
dealers regularly had offered higher rates of interest on our quotations.

 However, the board was bound to purchase treasury bonds from the party who only offers the highest 
rate of interest.

(g) the total amount invested was the maturity proceeds of treasury bonds and coupon interests received 
on 01.09.2016 and the aforementioned investment was made as per the directive received from the 
General treasury to the Chairman on 12.09.2016 and there was no time to do a prior study on this 
investment.

4.3  transactions of Contentious nature

(a)  the sports Club has been formed by employees of the employees trust fund board for the promotion 

of sports and provision of recreation facilities to members. At their request, a loan amounting to sum of 
Rs.03 million with a 10% p.a. interest has been granted with the approval of the board of directors and 
the re-payment of the respective installments is in order. furthermore, the loan installments have been 
deducted from monthly fees paid to them for providing tea service and clearing service to the board by 
the sports Club.

(b) In the year 2006, there was a request from the bank of Ceylon (boC) to increase the facilitation provided 
by employees trust fund board for the services rendered by them.

 this matter was discussed at the meeting held at the ministry of finance with the then secretary to the 
ministry of finance & planning, dr. p.b. Jayasundara and the then Chairman of employees trust fund 
board, mr. W. Karunajeewa on 28/04/2006. by his letter dated 05/05/2006 our Chairman had made 
the clarifications regarding this to the Chairman of bank of Ceylon. After the negotiations by both parties, 
deputy General manager (Corporate & offshore banking) of boC had requested either to increase 
the deposit of Rs.10 million with the bank to Rs.500 million or to increase the monthly charge from Rs. 
100,000/= to Rs. 400,000/=.

 Chairman of the employees trust fund board had conveyed its consent of increasing the deposit 
to Rs.500 million by his letter dated 1st of August 2006 to the deputy General manager (Corporate 
offshore banking). Accordingly the approval has been granted by the Chairman to transfer Rs.490 
million to a Repo deposit at boC on 17/08/2006. the above deposit of Rs.500 million is not an 
ordinary investment. It is a deposit made at the request of boC to compensate the services such as 
realizing the cheques on the following day which are deposited to the account of employees trust fund 
board and other services provided by the bank.

 furthermore, this deposit of Rs. 500 million has been re-invested annually at an interest rate as agreed 
upon by the etf board. Approval of the Chairman has been obtained for this investment annually. If this 
deposit was not increased to Rs. 500 million and the money charge was increased to Rs. 400,000/=, 
an additional cost of Rs. 300,000/= could have been incurred monthly, resulting in an expenditure of 
Rs. 3.6 million for one year. According to the investment appraisal, the increase of deposit was profitable 
to the board.

 In addition to the services provided by the bank, the following benefits are enjoyed by the employees 
trust fund board in maintaining the collection account with the bank.
1. since the exact amount that will be realized in the account on the following day is ‘know in 

advance’, employees trust fund board is in a position to invest funds before a period of one (01) 
day. therefore, the employees trust fund is able to gain an additional interest income.

2. the employees trust fund board has already earned a considerable amount of interest income 
from this deposit of Rs.500 million. 

3. since the boC collects the cheques from employees trust fund office, the opportunity cost of 
employing a person with transport by the employees trust fund board for this task is saved.

4.4   Identified Losses

(a) In pursuance of a decision made by the Cabinet of ministers, debentures worth Rs. 15 million were 
invested in the elkaduwa plantations Company in 1994. the amount of interest receivable for such 
debentures worth Rs. 15 million is Rs. 12,291,556.16.

 negotiations in regard to this outstanding amount were made with the parties concerned and it was 
promised to pay and settle the said amount by monthly installments worth Rs. 0.5 million. Accordingly, 
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11 installments were paid until the month of november 2011 and the balance amount has fallen in 
arrears. furthermore, this status quo has also been conveyed to the General treasury by the letter dated 
16.06.2014 and the elkaduwa plantations Company has once again on 07.07.2015 expressed their 
concerns on the Company’s financial difficulties and intimated that they would take this matter up with the 
secretary of the ministry of plantation Industries as well.

 the board by its letter dated 17.11.2015 has forwarded a letter to the secretary of the ministry of national 
policies and economic Affairs in connection with this interest income due to be recovered from the 
elkaduwa plantations Company. A copy of that letter has also been transmitted to the director General of 
the department of public enterprises of the General treasury. In response to our letter, the secretary of 
the ministry of national policies and economic Affairs has sent a letter to the Chairman / managing director 
of the elkaduwa plantations Company inquiring about the modality of the repayment of this money with a 
copy to the board whilst the Company by its letter of 10.08.2016 has informed us that they still undergo 
financial difficulties.

 Apart from this, money from the investments made in the debentures of the Vanik Incorporation plC is also 
due from them. particulars thereon have been furnished through the reply in para 4.5 (e). 

(b) the holiday resort situated at Anuradhapura maintained as a welfare measure aimed at the whole of the 
staff members employed in the board is not a strategic business unit with the objective of earning profits. 
A generalized charge is levied from the members of the staff of the board who seek accommodation in the 
said holiday resort in order to recover only its operational cost. the net loss shown in the accounts is due 
to depreciations made thereon on annual basis and the expenditure involving the salaries of the employees 
deployed for the services there.

(c) even though there was a downturn in the prices of unit trusts like this owing to the unfavourable conditions 
prevailed in the market in the year 2016, the value of those unit trusts by 30.06.2017 has shown an 
increase by Rs. 34,063,575 in comparison to the prices prevailed as at 31.12.2016.

(d) As there has been no final decision arrived at with regard to these two companies subjected to   
liquidation, the possibility of the recovery of such investments cannot be definitely confirmed.

(e) total amount invested in promissory notes of the Vanik Incorporation plC was lKR 12,174,382.19. this 
is as set out in the following breakdown.

▶ promissory notes issued to cover the Interest of the debentures outstanding 
 and unpaid amount of the same re' 11"262"382'19

▶ promissory notes issued to cover the interest of the debentures pertaining to
 the year 2001, issued on 10.12.1997    re' 912"000'00

▶    total amount converted into promissory notes re' 12"174"382'19

 lKr 11,262,382.19
 the applicable interest rate is 15.50% pertaining to promissory notes of lKR 15 million, commencing 

from 1st January 2002. monthly interest pertaining to promissory notes plus the capital installment to be 
paid monthly was received till July 2002. thereafter no payment was made and the remaining unpaid 
balance of promissory notes was lKR 11,262,382.19.

 lKr 912,000.00
 our initial investment in the Vanik Incorporation plC was lKR 7,450,259.00 (par value lKR 

6,080,000.00). Interest rate is 15.75%. the investment was effected on 10.12.1997. Interest was 

paid till 2000 on the same. the company has defaulted the interest of lKR 912,000 pertaining to the 
year 2001. therefore the defaulted amount was converted to promissory notes. However, the money 
pertaining to that promissory note too has not been paid.

 Amount invested in debentures of the Vanik Incorporation plC is lKR 7,450,259.00

 Investment was made in 1997 and even after restructuring, amount due for the period from 2007 to 
2011 was not paid back.

 Currently a law suit against the Vanik Incorporation plC has been in progress and the next hearing date 
is on 17.01.2018.

(f) even though the fair value in ordinary share investments of the board as at 31.12.2017 had dropped 
by Rs. 465,748,000 in comparison to the fair value in ordinary share investments of the board as at 
31.12.2016, the average value of such share investments has increased by Rs. 920,376,000 as at 
30.06.2017 as against 31.12.2016. 

4.5  staff administration

 In spite of the fact that the interviews were held in order to fill up the vacancy in the post of General 
manager after calling for applications from among external candidates on several occasions, a suitable 
candidate could not be selected. therefore, it has been decided to follow some other strategy to fill up 
the vacancy concerned. 

4.6 operating activities

 following matters are observed.

(a) A sum amounting to Rs. 399,806,973.42 million has been credited to the member accounts during the 
year 2017 by the special Accounts Clearing unit established on 10.02.2016 and the balance thereof 
stood as at 31.12.2017 was Rs. 1,441,384,059.51.

(b) the department of labour, following a request made to the Commissioner of labour by the Chairman 
of the board, has given us a compact disk containing the employees trust fund numbers issued by 
the department of labour to the employees to whom the provisional numbers have been assigned by 
the board. As such, arrangements are being made to transfer the contributions lying in the provisional 
numbers to the permanent etf numbers. 

 monies lying to the credit of the accounts of the employees who have not obtained their trust fund 
numbers, but continue to make contributions under the provisional accounts will now be credited to the 
accounts of the respective members.

5.    accountability and good governance

5.1    Internal audit

(a) & (b) 
 following pre Audit has been carried out during the year 2016 as per the requirements of the 

management :-
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(i) member benefit Claims

number of Claims confirmed &
submitted for payment

normal benefits 57"544

death benefits 1"114

Iol 541

Heart surgery 817

permanent disability 73

shramasuwa 1"540

Kidney transplant 23

scholarships – Grade V & A/l 218

staff medical Reimbursements 12"829

total 104"699

(ii) there were reports of staff final payments numbering 26 which have been issued during the year.
(iii) monthly staff Incentive Rate Verification
(iv) Housing loan  Reimbursement Verification
(v) Annual staff bonus 2015
(vi) staff Annual leave Verification – 2015

          In addition to the above pre-audits, following post audits have also been carried out during the year.
1. Verification of progress of the Contribution and surcharge income – 2015
2. Return on Investments
3. nawam mawatha Car park Income Audit
4. Annual staff bonus 2015
5. staff Annual leave Verification 2015

 furthermore, all investigation reports including investments etc, has been duly submitted to the Chairman 
of the board.

  
(c ) suitably qualified staff for audit duties has been limited to only 3 persons during the year 2016 and as 

such, new Assistant Internal Auditors numbering 04 personnel have been recruited in June 2017 as per 
the recommendation of the Committee on public enterprises (Cope). 

 two newly recruited Assistant Internal Auditors have been assigned for investment and finance audit 
full time. In addition, procurement and contract administration audits were also commenced. Creation 
of new posts for Assistant General manager (Internal Audit) and manager (Internal Audit) is in progress 
and promotions required were also granted. the Internal Audit division has been strengthened for the   
continuation of pre audit and post audit works in a systematic way. 

5.2    budgetary Control

(a) & (b)
 the budgeted income of the board remains only on the same percentage of 94% was due to the 

investments in risk free Government securities and the financial rates prevailing in the financial market as 
at the date of the realization of investments with other fixed interest income and  also the dividends and 
capital gains received from the listed companies in the market. As such, it is the strategy of the board 
to reach out to the budgeted income taking the investment portfolio into account despite the fact that 

there may be a variance in actual value over the budget as against the income derived from each of the 
investment items. Accordingly, the board was able to maintain the variance between the total budgeted 
gross revenue and the total actual gross avenue favourably at a level of 2.2%.

 When taking the variance in expenditure into consideration as stated in the audit query, all expenses 
that can be controlled by the board is managed under a very tight leash and certain expenditure 
such as member benefits cannot be controlled by the board in any manner. even though the values 
concerning the member benefits expected to be defrayed by the board in the ensuing year is set out in 
the preparation of the annual budget, the actual expenditure involved is determined only if the members 
lay claim on such benefits. It is not practical to say that the budget had not been made use of as an 
effective instrument of management control after comparing the budgeted expenditure and the actual 
expenditure vis-à-vis member benefits.

 However, the mere fact that the board has maintained the variance between the budgeted income and 
expenditure and the actual income and expenditure at a level of 2.2% and 2.3% respectively goes on to 
substantiate that the board is in possession of a very good budgetary control.

5.3   procurement and Contract process

 procurements of every description in respect of the year 2016 have been carried out in keeping with the 
Government procurement Guidelines as well as the approved procedure of the procurement guidelines 
of the board. Accordingly, in dealing with the procurements of every description, the technical evaluation 
Committees and the tender boards have been appointed in conformity to the Government procurement 
Guidelines and all the tenders up to the value of Rs. 500,000 have been approved by the Chairman on 
the recommendation of the tender boards concerned whereas all the tenders in excess of the value of 
Rs. 500,000 have been met with the approval of the board of directors following the recommendation 
of the respective tender boards.

5.4  non implementation of the directives of the Committee on public 
Enterprises

 At the meeting of the Committee on public enterprises held on the 26th of August 2016, it was 
proposed that the provisions of section 5 (2) of the employees trust fund Act that stipulates the Chief 
executive offficer of the board becomes the Chairman of the board be amended. Amendment of the 
employees trust fund Act has already been referred to the Cabinet of ministers for approval after a very 
strenuous process that commenced in the year 2009. even at the time of the Committee on public 
enterprises proposed the said new amendment to the employees trust fund board, the amendments 
to be made to the employees trust fund Act had already been conveyed. As such, it is expected to 
deal with the changes to be made to the provisions of section 5 (2) of the employees trust fund Act 
as proposed by the Committee on public enterprises as a resubmitted amendment subsequent to the 
taking effect of the already proposed amendments to the Act.

6. systems and Controls

(a) Accounting 
 the board, in the preparation of its financial statements, has adhered to the sri lanka Accounting 

standards (lKAs and slfRs).
 
(b) operational Controls
 Rs. 135,779 million has been received as contributions from 1981 to 31.12.2014. balance held in the 
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employers account without crediting to individual member accounts is Rs. 1441 million. this amount 
counts 1.06% out of whole amount of contributions. 

 special unit established in 10.02.2016 is involved in collecting correct information of employees from 
relevant institutions and e.t.f. and in transmitting information from mobile services and crediting of money 
to those individual member accounts. this unit has strived to reduce the undistributed amount by 50% 
(to individual member accounts).

 In addition to that, the delays involved in crediting money to the individual member accounts occur owing 
to following reasons.
1. not providing the necessary employee details for crediting the amount, even though the employers 

have paid the respective contribution.
2. the difficulty in understanding the method of appropriation of the contributions for each institution 

was the certain situations where the contributions were paid by one single cheque for several 
institutions. (whilst some of employers being currently inactive)

3. unclear data included in the half-yearly returns provided by the employers. (the relevant employer 
being currently inactive)

4. Inability to gain access to relevant information in the preceding periods due to management 
changes and the new management not cooperating in providing solutions to the problems that 
arise in those passages of time.

5. Identification problems due to providing parts of the names of the members who do not possess 
national identity cards, especially in the estate sector.

(c)        funds management     

 94% of the fund has been set in the risk free and fixed interest rates yielding investments in a manner 
that ensures the maximum safety of the monies collected from the contributors and only a portion of 
about 6% of the funds have been put in the risky investments. the board has been able to earn a 
percentage of 10.51% as its gross investment income during the year 2016. 

(d)        budgetary Control     

 the mere fact that the board has maintained the variance between the budgeted income and 
expenditure and the actual income and expenditure of the year at a level of 2.2% and 2.3% respectively 
goes on to substantiate that the board is in possession of a very good budgetary control. 

(e)      suitably qualified staff for audit duties has been limited to only 3 persons during the year 2016 and as 
such, new Assistant Internal Auditors numbering 04 personnel have been recruited in June 2017 as per 
the recommendation of the Committee on public enterprises (Cope). 

 two newly recruited Assistant Internal Auditors have been assigned for investment and finance audit on 
full time basis. In addition, the procurement and contract administration audits were also commenced. 
Creation of new posts for Assistant General manager (Internal Audit) and manager (Internal Audit) is in 
progress and promotions required were also granted. the Internal Audit division has been strengthened 
for the continuation of pre audit and post audit assignments in a systematic way.

mahinda madihahewa
Chairman/Ceo

employees’  trust fund board

statistical
Annexures

2016



EmployEEs’ TrusT Fund Board
AnnuAl RepoRt 2016

EmployEEs’ TrusT Fund Board
AnnuAl RepoRt 2016 363362

statIstICal annEXurE

44 | P a g e  
 

 

Statistical Annexure 

 

 

44 | P a g e  
 

 

Statistical Annexure 

 

 

45 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

CAGR 12% 

CAGR 12% 

45 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

CAGR 12% 

CAGR 12% 

45 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

CAGR 12% 

CAGR 12% 

46 | P a g e  
 

 

  2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 CAGR 
  (Rs:000) (Rs:000) (Rs:000) (Rs:000) (Rs:000) % 

Income             
 Interest Income    23,492,350    20,274,204  19,056,836    17,331,497  14,663,189  10% 
            (-) Interest Expense - 3.0%   
(As per the Section 22 of the ETF Act)  

   (6,759,768)  (6,013,817) (5,287,328)    (4,752,333) (4,189,948) 10% 

 Dividend Income          486,194        360,582        309,256          318,660        208,701  18% 
 Profit on Sale of Quoted Shares & 
Units  

          68,592        833,850        894,917            68,178     (304,378) - 

 Other Income          331,650        320,139       317,455          286,047       258,892  5% 
 Total Income    17,619,018    15,774,958  15,291,136    13,252,049  10,636,456  11% 
              
 Expense              
 Personal Expenses          985,963        994,389       813,000          720,022        632,244  9% 
 Administrative Expenses          140,819        132,608        134,786          125,307        110,702  5% 
 Financial Expenses              2,904            1,988            3,041              2,657            2,485  3% 
 Member Expenses          454,466        429,610        380,512          314,372        289,908  9% 
Depreciation of Property and 
Equipment 

          15,290          16,896          18,605            18,863          20,878  -6% 

Interest Paid on Current Year         173,630        148,737        209,073          128,958        118,220  8% 
Total Operating Expenses     1,773,072      1,724,228    1,559,017      1,310,179    1,174,437  9% 
              
 Profit before Taxation    15,845,946    14,050,730  13,732,119    11,941,870    9,462,019  11% 
 Income Tax Expenses      2,394,498      2,060,646    1,947,132      1,781,100    1,504,018  10% 
              
 Profit after Taxation    13,451,448    11,990,084  11,784,987    10,160,770    7,958,001  11% 
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(Rs:000) (Rs:000) (Rs:000) (Rs:000) (Rs:000) %

Income       
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        68,592       833,850       894,917         68,178    (304,378) -
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total operating Expenses    1,773,072    1,724,228   1,559,017    1,310,179   1,174,437 9%

 15,845,946  14,050,730 13,732,119  11,941,870   9,462,019 11%

   2,394,498    2,060,646   1,947,132    1,781,100   1,504,018 10%

      

Profit after Taxation  13,451,448  11,990,084 11,784,987  10,160,770   7,958,001 11%
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  2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 CAGR 
  (Rs:000) (Rs:000) (Rs:000) (Rs:000) (Rs:000) % 
ASSETS             
Cash and Cash Equivalent        614,332         841,949      2,653,133      1,043,164         414,831  8% 
Other Financial Assets Held-for-
Trading 

    2,286,723      1,829,018         733,167      7,550,428      6,871,632  -20% 

Financial Investments - 
Available-for-Sale 

  10,140,142      8,973,928      8,592,784         485,835         485,835  84% 

Financial Investments - Held-to-
Maturity 

222,454,509  198,320,192  169,651,791  153,137,676  135,407,687  10% 

Financial Investments - Loans & 
Receivables 

    1,343,876      1,336,538      7,535,296      7,418,615      7,234,690  -29% 

Other Assets     9,145,957      7,865,283      6,512,779      5,478,972      4,451,654  15% 
Property and Equipment        176,378         173,144         187,008         183,067           18,824  56% 
Intangible Assets               192                266                369                514                717  -23% 
Investment Property     3,200,000      3,200,000      3,200,000      3,200,000      3,200,000  0% 
Total Assets 249,362,110  222,540,319  199,066,327  178,498,271  158,085,870  10% 
              
Liability and Equity             
Current Tax Liabilities          81,082           33,582           68,330         122,359         109,797  -6% 
Other Liabilities        304,104         351,851         267,841         235,917         156,894  14% 
Provisions          87,841         213,754           76,923           41,482           37,497  19% 
Total Liabilities        473,027         599,187         413,094         399,758         304,188  9% 
Total Equity 248,889,083  221,941,132  198,653,233  178,098,513  157,951,099  10% 
Total Liabilities and Equity 249,362,110  222,540,319  199,066,327  178,498,271  158,255,287  10% 

 

48 | P a g e  
 

(Rs:000) (Rs:000) (Rs:000) (Rs:000) (Rs:000) %

assets

      614,332       841,949    2,653,133    1,043,164       414,831 8%

   2,286,723    1,829,018       733,167    7,550,428    6,871,632 -20%

 10,140,142    8,973,928    8,592,784       485,835       485,835 84%

222,454,509 198,320,192 169,651,791 153,137,676 135,407,687 10%

   1,343,876    1,336,538    7,535,296    7,418,615    7,234,690 -29%

   9,145,957    7,865,283    6,512,779    5,478,972    4,451,654 15%

      176,378       173,144       187,008       183,067         18,824 56%

             192              266              369              514              717 -23%

   3,200,000    3,200,000    3,200,000    3,200,000    3,200,000 0%

total assets 249,362,110 222,540,319 199,066,327 178,498,271 158,085,870 10%

        81,082         33,582         68,330       122,359       109,797 -6%
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total liabilities       473,027       599,187       413,094       399,758       304,188 9%
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